

TEAMWORK CHQ RELEASE GUIDE

Version 5.0

Table of Contents

Sales and OMS	5
RMA – Return Worksheet	5
Select Contact	14
Pre-Sale	15
Rename Pre-Sale to Pre-Order	16
OMS Payment Capture After Ship	
OMS Email Notifications – Delivery Pending	19
Customer Override Membership	20
Layaway Order Expiration	22
Populate FiscalDate Field During Posting	22
CHQ Ledger – Tracking Cost Changes for LedgerDetail	22
New Ship Memo Item Field	23
Right to Access Integrations Area in Settings	23
Settings for Email Address Verification	
Require Ready to Fill to Sell SO Items	25
Contact Records Type	
miTPV Payment Processing	
Extended Simplified Sales Order API with Custom Fields	
Purchasing	
Matching Vendor Invoice – Unmatch	
Purchase Order History	
Support of Avalara Services in Sales Orders	
Avalara Integration – Eliminate Integrator	40
Selected Row Should Open on Enter	
Purchase Order Export API – SO Item ID	
Search and Filter by Vendor No	
Auto-Create Drop Ship POs	41
Inventory	
Visual Allocation	
Adjustment Memos	
Confirmation Message on Adjustment Memo Finalization	
Created Adjustment Memos Display in Recent Area	
Filtering Styles/Items by eCommerce Type	
Add Ship From Vendor Field on Item Level	

Price Level – Prevent Changing Price Level Code	81
Add Discontinued Flag on Item Level	81
Custom Multi-Select Fields	
Inventory Catalog Fields	
Inventory Catalog – Extend Number of Style Custom Fields	85
Style Details Report	
Allow Blank Labels for Fields in Styles & Items	
Min/Max Import	
Inventory – Backorder Field	91
Item Replenishment Fields	91
Tax Group Setting Added to Inventory Export API	
Quick Transfers	
SVS Support	96
LRP 1 & 2 Flags and Ratio on Item	
SVS Location Groups	÷
Customer Search – Adding Contact Fields	
Share Customers Among all SVS Namespaces used by Company	
Analytics	98
Data Mine Functionality	
Added Localization in Data Mines	
Stock Ledger	
Cost on Positive Adjustments in CHQ Stock Ledger	
Settings	
Settings – Order Field in Printing for Mobile	
Settings – Added External ID to UI for Location	
Settings – Hide Costing Method Field from Preset Item Options	
Settings for Attribute Labels Added	
Settings – "Allow Negative" Flag for Store Credit Payment	102
Settings – Membership Level Custom Fields	
Settings – Format Value in DCSS and ACSS Fields	104
Settings – Coupon Programs Restricted by PLU or Promo Group	105
Verify Items from Held Customization	108
Commission Group	109
Void/Reverse Time Settings	
Settings – Channels	111

Other Enhancements 112
Javascript-Based Reports Replace Siverlight112
Updated "About" Info112
Additional UPC Verification
Customer Membership Code 113
Updated List of Predefined Countries114
Clean Up of Security Rights
Updated Date Picker to Match Time Picker114
New Length of Location Name Field115
CRM – Extended Email Status Information115
Magento 1.9 – SL ECM Replaces EC API 115
Update Authorize.net SDK
FedEx Address Verification Service116
Vendor Contact Emails added to Email PO 117
Style Item Dialog for Min/Max
Serial Number Management – Sales and Returns
CRM – Identity GC119
Weeks of Supply Removed from DCSS Settings119
Rename Min/Max to Model Stock120
Price Export API121
Order History API121
Send All Sales Receipts to Avalara122
Epilogue125

Sales and OMS

RMA – Return Worksheet

Version 5.12 - TWD-4670

August 2017

RMA stands for Return Merchandise Authorization. Every store, whether a physical store or online, has items that get returned at some point, and using RMA codes is the key to simplified and easy returns.

Stores typically have an order number for the entire order, so when processing a return, associates have to find the order and then find the individual item. This is not so tedious if it's a small order, but can take some time if it's a large order with multiple items.

RMA codes takes out this middle step of having to locate the items, because the RMA codes is already associated, and that's the only information needed.

Each time a Sales Receipt is created, from either a Ship Memo or POS, each line on the Sales Receipt has a specific RMA code. This is a unique code that points to that specific line on the receipt.

RMA codes are alphanumeric, so that a unique number can be represented in just a few characters (11 to 12).

For example, if a customer purchases a pair of shoes, a t-shirt, and a jacket, each of those line items has a unique number that points to that specific item.

When the packing slip gets printed, this gets shipped out with the merchandise. Again, each item on that return slip has a unique RMA code.

So, if the customer brings the item and packing slip into a store to process the return, the associate can either scan the barcode or enter the RMA code number into the system, for an easy return.

Similarly, if the customer send the item (or items) back via mail, the receiving warehouse just quickly scans or enters the RMA code into a Return Worksheet, and the relevant information is pulled up in CHQ.

This includes information such as sales history, the item info, payment info, and more. The associate then clicks Return to return the money to the customer, create a Return Receipt, and put the item back in stock.

For larger companies that deal with many different boxes of returns at a time, this can all be entered into one Return Worksheet, and saved at the same time – no need to create different worksheets for different items or orders.

Worksheets can show returns for the day or shift, making reporting and analytics very easy.

If the returned item is damaged or unable to be resold, there is an option on the worksheet to reject the return or select the quality of the item. If the item is so damaged that the customer is not going to be refunded, the return can still be processed without refunding the customer.

Return Worksheets are customizable per company return policies and individual preferences. There is also an option to make notes for the item.

If no RMA code or packing slip is included with a return, the original receipt can still be pulled up using different information, such as the return address on the box, customer name, etc.

RMA Orders

To view return orders, go to Sales > RMA Orders. This tab functions the same as all other similar tabs in that the recent orders display, you can filter out or search for orders not shown, or select **List** to go to the list view.

This tab is only visible with the security rights enabled.

TEAMWORK	inventory purchasing sales analytics services settings
order management ship memos	search p
RMA orders	recent filter
return worksheets	2 100000003 RMA # 3RW2ZNJIH 08/11/2017 RMA order #
promotion engine	I 100000001 RMA # CRE68SU2 filled 07/21/2017 created date
	RMA #
	return tracking #
	universal sales order #
	sales order #
	web order #
	style #
	do not show archived 🤝
	Q

The screen below shows the List view.

chive						filter 🔻
RMA #	return reason	customer name	created date	created by	qty	returned qty
3RW2ZNJIH	Damaged	Masha Kharkiv	08/11/2017 8:41 AM	ROOT ROOT	1	0
CRE68SU2	Damaged	Tom Godfrey	07/21/2017 7:37 AM	ROOT ROOT	1	1
	RMA # 3RW2ZNJIH	RMA # return reason 3RW2ZNJIH Damaged	RMA # return reason customer name 3RW2ZNJIH Damaged Masha Kharkiv	RMA # return reason customer name created date 3RW2ZNJIH Darnaged Masha Kharkiv 08/11/2017 8:41 AM	RMA # return reason customer name created date created by 3RW2ZNJIH Damaged Masha Kharkiv 08/11/2017 8:41 AM ROOT ROOT	RMA # return reason customer name created date created by qtp 3RW2ZNJIH Damaged Masha Kharkiv 08/11/2017 8:41 AM ROOT ROOT 1

Select **Edit** to view the details of the selected RMA order. Notice the *Return Reason* field where users can select the return reasons created in Settings (see the section below for more information on setting these up).

RMA orde	er 100000	00003		
general			item info	
RI	VIA order #:	100000003	RMA #:	3RW2ZNJIH
ret	urn reason:	Damaged 👻	store:	HAUTE/CLIP GLITTERY
C cr	eated date:	-08/11/2017 8:41 AM	attribute 1:	Size 11.5
	created by:	ROOT ROOT	attribute 2:	
last mo	dified date:	08/11/2017 8:41 AM	attribute 3:	
last n	nodified by:	ROOT ROOT	style #:	31
	archived:		PLU:	456
order info)		CLU:	
univer	sal order #:	10649000005	UPC:	
sa	les order #:	10649000005	totals	
W	eb order #:		qty:	1
custo	mer name:	Masha Kharkiv	returned qty:	0
return	tracking #:		avail. for return:	1
			filled %:	0
notes				
				save cancel

Return Worksheets

To view return worksheets or to create a new one, go to Sales > Return Worksheets. Again, return worksheets are used for processing returns, and can be used for a single return or to process multiple returns all at once.

This tab functions the same as all other similar tabs in that the recent worksheets display, you can filter out or search for worksheets not shown, or select **List** to go to the list view.

This tab is only visible with the security rights enabled.

TEAMWORK	inventory purchasing sales	analytics services settings
order management		search O
ship memos	new list	~
RMA orders	recent	filter
return worksheets	2 1000000007 105 - New York S 08/15/2017 open 08/15/2017	return worksheet #
promotion engine	1000000006 100 - Clearwater 08/11/2017 open 08/11/2017	status
	1000000005 100 - Clearwater 08/11/2017	created date
	b 1000000004 100 - Clearwater 07/21/2017 completed	RMA#
	1000000003 100 - Clearwater 07/14/2017 open 07/14/2017	return tracking #
	202 - Lille Shop 03/03/2017	universal sales order #
		sales order #
		web order #
		sales receipt #
		return receipt #
		customer, email
		Q
root 🖷		Generation (US) - version 5.12.314.0

▲ I CHC	return	worksheets				
new	edit remov	e archive				filte
universal # 👻	status	location	created date	created by	last modified date	last modified by
100000007	open	105 - New York Store	08/15/2017 9:31 AM	ROOT ROOT	08/15/2017 9:31 AM	ROOT ROOT
100000006	open	100 - Clearwater Store	08/11/2017 8:46 AM	ROOT ROOT	08/11/2017 8:46 AM	ROOT ROOT
100000005	open	100 - Clearwater Store	08/11/2017 8:45 AM	ROOT ROOT	08/11/2017 8:45 AM	ROOT ROOT
100000004	completed	100 - Clearwater Store	07/21/2017 7:38 AM	ROOT ROOT	07/21/2017 7:38 AM	ROOT ROOT
100000003	open	100 - Clearwater Store	07/14/2017 10:48 AM	ROOT ROOT	07/14/2017 10:48 AM	ROOT ROOT
100000001	open	202 - Lille Shop	03/03/2017 8:05 AM	Paul Gunter	03/03/2017 8:05 AM	Paul Gunter

From the main page, or the list view shown below, click **New** to start a worksheet.

Most of the fields on the *General* tab are auto-filled by Teamwork, except you'll need to fill in the *Location* field, which is the location where the return is being done.

return works	neet 100000008 - open
general	general
items	worksheet #: 100000008
ileniis	Iocation: ***
	created by: ROOT ROOT
	last modified date: 08/25/2017 2:43 PM
	last modified by: ROOT ROOT archived:
	totals
	# of lines: 0
	# of pending lines: 0
	qty: 0 notes
	* - required
refresh	close & archive close

The next tab, *Items* is where you'll add the items included in the return. Use the *Search to Add* field to look up the item or items you want.

return worksh	neet 1(00000008 -	open							
general			nalize return act	ons 👻						Q
items			Q				condition:		~	filter 👻
	-	progress	RMA #	condition			qty	customer r	ame	RMA order #
	<									>
		0 records		КК	page 1	of 1	• •	10 25	50	,
refresh								close & a	rchive	close

Use the *Condition* field to select the condition of the return item. The options in this drop-down are created in Settings > Sales > Return Conditions (see the next section for more information).



If there is no RMA # for the item you're trying to add, an error message displays. Click **Yes** to continue adding the item to the worksheet, or **No** to close the dialog and return to the open worksheet.

RMA not found		
RMA # is not found. Do you war worksheet anyway.	nt to add this item	1 to
	yes	по

If the added item doesn't have an RMA#, the name displays in red, as shown below.

general	edit	remove f	inalize return act	ions 🔻					Q
tems		to add	Q			condition:	Damaged	*	filter 🔻
	-	progress	RMA #	condition		qty	customer n	ame	RMA order
			peppermint so	Damaged		1			
	K								,

Every time changes are made on this dialog, those changes are immediately saved to the server. Clicking the **Refresh** button ensures that the information displayed is the most current.

When finished adding items, click **Close** to close this dialog but keep the worksheet open, or **Close & Archive** to mark the worksheet as closed and archive it.



The diagram below shows the way return statuses work.

New Settings

Under Settings > Sales, there is a new Return Conditions tab for defining allowable return values.

TEAMWORK		inventory	purchasing sales	analytics	services	settings		
search		urn conditio	ns					Q
🚥 security		new eo	dit					
 company settings 		code	description 🔺	list order				
 location settings 	AC	CEPTABLE	Acceptable	0				
inventory / catalog	OP	ENED	Good - Opened	0				
▶ customer	NO	BOX	Good - Without box	4				
∡ sales	UN	OPENED	Good - Unopened	1				
POS settings sales documents sales receipt tabs sales email ship items sales pre-set notes return reasons return conditions	NO	MANUAL	Missing Manual	0				
price / cost code		5 records		page 1 c	of 1 🕨	10	25 50	
root					(💮 English (L	IS) 🔻 🚺	version 5.0.273.0

Selecting **New** brings up the *New Return Condition* dialog for defining the return condition terms.

new return condition						
code:		*				
description:						
external ID:						
list order:	0					
inactive:						
* - required						
	save cance					

Additionally, under Settings > Sales > Sales Documents, there is *Return Worksheets – Refund To* field for defining how the refund is processed (back to original credit card, store credit, etc.)

	inventory purchasing sales analytics services settings
search D	sales documents
▶ security	allow multiple coupon discounts:
 company settings 	enable customer associated coupons:
 location settings 	returns
inventory / catalog	allow returns: 🗸
▶ customer	use custom returns service (disable universal returns):
▲ sales	return worksheets - refund to: original card/store credit
POS settings	
sales documents	payments
sales receipt tabs	restrict to one credit card per sale:
sales email	manual select payment method for change due before finalize:
ship items	allow to make changes in sales receipt with payments:
sales pre-set notes	payment processing - maas global
return reasons	save cancel
root 🖌	🚱 English (US) 👻 📋 version 5.0.276.0

New Security Right

Area	Right	Name	Description
Return Worksheets	RMA-ACCESS	Access	Access to Return Worksheets
Return Worksheets	RMA-ADDEDIT	Add Edit	Add new, edit, and remove Return Worksheets
Return Worksheets	RMA-FINALIZE	Finalize Return	Finalize Return in Return Worksheets
RMA Orders	RMAORDERS- ACCESS	Access	Access to RMA Orders
RMA Orders	RMAORDERS- ADDEDIT	Add Edit	Add new, edit RMA Orders

Select Contact

Version 5.10 - TWD-2660

August 2017

Under Settings > Sales > Sales Documents > Sales, we've added a new "Prompt for Contact on Add Customer" flag. When enabled, when a customer is added in POS, a prompt displays to select the customer record.

		inventory purchasing sales analytics services settings
search	Q	sales documents
 inventory / catalog 	^	general
▶ customer		rounding workflow: TaxDExtS -
∡ sales		show CLU instead of PLU in some items grids (temp):
POS settings		require customer password for gift card not present:
sales documents		external tax service URL: https://demo03int.teamworkinsight.com/REST/tax/getta
sales receipt tabs		sales
sales email		restrict discount class to one type on sale (item or global):
ship items		require customer information for tax exempt:
sales pre-set notes		allow to change tax area for sale items: 🗹
return reasons		allow multiple coupon discounts: 🗹
return conditions		enable customer associated coupons:
payment methods		prompt for contact on add customer:
price / cost code		use customer ovenide membership for discounting.

Additionally, when a customer is added to a receipt, a pop-up contact selection dialog displays.

Pad হ Jeffrey Stegall			1:17 PM				∦ 67% 💶 >
Customer Orders Items	Ship To	Pre-Sets	Returns	Summary	Accounts	Payments	
Jeffrey Stegall				oper Display <u>v Profile</u>	/		Add New
201 Alderwood Road Apt 999 San Ramon, CA, 94582	Person		Cancel	<u>Profile</u> g <u>e Password</u>			Edit / View
USA	< None >						Remove
Select Person	Jeffrey Stegal						
Membership: Family	Lori Stegall			ow Heard:	<u>Select</u>		
Membership Expires: 6/30/2017 Account ID: 12345678	Billy Stegall			Weather:	<u>Select</u>		
Status: Active Email 1: jstegall@te	Sally Stegall						Customer History
Phone 1: (916) 402-				ZIP Code:			Membership

Pre-Sale

Version 5.10 – TWD-2731

August 2017

We've added new pre-sale fields on the item level. Pre-sale is for items that are purchased ahead of time, before the item is available in inventory.

The added fields are as follows:

- Pre-sale start date Date/time when an item pre-sale starts
- Pre-sale end date Date/time when an item pre-sale ends (and becomes a regular item)
- Pre-sale max quantity Max number of units that can be sold between pre-sale start date/time and end date/time

These three fields are now in:

- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer on the General Single Item, General Service Item tabs, and Edit Style/Item dialog.
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Open Style/Model dialog for style that contains more than 1 item > Items tab > Control & Usage section
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import. Can assign these fields when importing items.
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Imports > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items Tab > Edit > Inventory Item > General Tab > "Control & Usage" Section
- Inventory Export report
- Inventory Catalog export

OMS

The Presale flag is added to the following places:

- Sales Order Details dialog
 - Sales Order Details Dialog > Items tab > Items grid. This flag is enabled if the current date/time is prior to the pre-sale end date.
 - Presale items can't have a Ship Memo, so the Create SM button is disabled.
- Order Management list view:
 - If at least one item on the order is presale, then the pre-sale flag is enabled.
 - New multi-select filter to choose *pre-sale only*, *mixed orders*, or *regular only*.
 - Create SM and Auto-Process buttons are disabled for pre-sale items.
- Order Management interaction view:
 - Pre-sale filter added (to display or filter out *pre-sale only* orders)
 - *Pre-sale only* are orders where all items are pre-sale. When the *Show pre-sale orders* option is selected, this displays all orders, with and without pre-sale items.

Rename Pre-Sale to Pre-Order

Version 5.12 - TWD-5490

August 2017

Mention of Pre-Sale has been renamed to Pre-Order in the following areas.

Inventory

- Default labels of Pre-Sale Start Date, Pre-Sale End Date, and Pre-Sale Max Quantity fields now read Pre-Order Start Date, Pre-Order End Date, and Pre-Order Max Quantity in the Styles & Items designer (Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer) in the tabs:
 - o General Single Item
 - o General Service Item
- Default labels of Pre-Sale Start Date, Pre-Sale End Date, and Pre-Sale Max Quantity fields now read Pre-Order Start Date, Pre-Order End Date, and Pre-Order Max Quantity in the Control & Usage section in the Style/Model dialog, Items tab (Inventory > Styles & Items > Open Style/Model dialog for style that contains more than 1 item > Items tab).
- Default labels of Pre-Sale Start Date, Pre-Sale End Date, and Pre-Sale Max Quantity fields now read Pre-Order Start Date, Pre-Order End Date, and Pre-Order Max Quantity in the Import Inventory Item edit dialog (Inventory > Styles & Items > Imports > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items Tab > Edit > Inventory Item > General Tab > Control & Usage section).
- Default labels of *Pre-Sale Start Date, Pre-Sale End Date,* and *Pre-Sale Max Quantity* fields now read *Pre-Order Start Date, Pre-Order End Date,* and *Pre-Order Max Quantity* in the Inventory Export report. In Inventory Import, both labels for each field are supported.
- Inventory Catalog import and export.

Sales Orders

• On the Sales Order Details dialog > Items tab, the *Pre-Sale* flag now reads *Pre-Order* on the Items grid.

Order Management List View

- Pre-Sale flag now reads Pre-Order
- *Pre-Sale* filter now reads *Pre-Order* (options are now: Pre-Order Only orders, Mixed Orders, and Regular Only orders.

Order Management Interaction View

• *Pre-Sale* filter now reads *Pre-Order* (options are now: Do not Show Pre-Order Only orders, or Show Pre-Order orders).

OMS Payment Capture After Ship

Version 5.10 – TWD-2635, TWD-2474, TWD-2475

August 2017

This feature is for the "Capture After Shipping" option for the Auth and Capture workflow.

Auth and Capture means the card is authorized and the order is processed, and the funds are taken AFTER the order is processed.

There is a new payment type called Insufficient Funds.

new payment method					
Select payment method type:					
payment type:	*				
	cash				
	check				
	credit card				
* - required	coupon				
	credit card credit				
	deposit used				
	gift card				
	gift certificate				
	insufficient funds				

The New/Edit dialog for this payment method is shown in the image below.

INSUFFICIENT FUNDS	
general	
payment type:	insufficient funds
code:	INSUFFICIENT FUNDS *
description:	Insufficient Funds
list order:	0
external ID:	
inactive:	
* - required	
I	save cancel

New Settings

There is a new "Auth and Capture – Capture On" setting. This can be found in Settings > Order Management > Customer Orders > Web and Send Sales.

	inventory purchasing sales analytics services settings
order 🛛 😣 🔎	customer orders
 custom fields payment lines 	web and send sales
sales order header	auto approve all new web sale orders: 🗹 auto approve all new send sale orders:
sales receipt header	scheduled auto process:
order management	email notifications - vyband cond color
sales order types sales order tabs	email notification for "order confirmation" - send sale:
customer orders ship to required fields	email notification for "order confirmation" - web order: email notification for "shipping confirmation":
delivery order time ranges sell from locations	email notification for "ready for pick up": 🗹 email notification for "cancelling": 🗹
fill locations shipment reject reasons	email notification for "changing sales order": 🗹 email notification for "changing shipping address": 🗹
shipping boxes	email notification for "changing pick up location": 🗹 email notification for "return" (next version): 🗹

In this drop-down you can select either Create Ship Memo (the default) or Ship/Pick Up.

If Ship/Pick Up is selected and there is no payment method with the payment type Insufficient Funds then an error displays and you will be unable to save.

If Create Ship Memo is selected and there is a Sales Order where the total for the SO lines with the status of Delivery Pending is MORE than the total of the unused deposits PLUS the payment due, then an error displays that the amount is not enough to fulfil the order and you will be unable to save.

New Security Right

Right Code	Right Name	Right Description
SM-PROCWITHOUTFUNDS	Process Insufficient Funds SM	Process Ship Memos with Insufficient Funds

If the user doesn't have this right enabled then the option to fulfil a ship memo with insufficient funds is disabled.

OMS Email Notifications – Delivery Pending

Version 5.12 - TWD-4394

August 2017

A customer email notification is often desired at the time of creating a Ship Memo. There is a new Email Notification type called Delivery Pending. With this setting enabled, an automated email can be sent to the customer when the status of the order changes to *Delivery Pending*.

This new *Email Notification for Delivery Pending* setting can be found under Settings > Order Management > Customer Orders.

	inventory purchasing sales analytics services settings
search O	customer orders
▶ security	
▶ company settings	web and send sales
 location settings 	auto approve all new web sale orders:
 inventory / catalog 	auto approve all new send sale orders: scheduled auto process:
▶ customer	do not check RTA when auto process:
▶ sales	email notifications - web and send sales
 order management 	ernail notification for "order confirmation" - send sale:
sales order types	email otification for "order confirmation" - web order:
sales order tabs	email notification for "delivery pending":
customer orders	email notification for "shipping confirmation":
ship to required fields	email notification for "ready for pick up":
delivery order time ranges	email notification for "cancelling":
sell from locations	email notification for "changing sales order":
fill locations	email notification for "changing shipping address":
shipment reject reasons	email notification for "changing pick up location":
shipping boxes	email notification for "return" (next version):
	confirmations
 drawer management 	show confirmation when "create SM" in sales order list:
 purchasing 	
 transfers 	
▶ printing	save cancel
mk 🙍	🛞 English (US) 👻 📋 version 5.0.339.0

Customer Override Membership

Version 5.10 - TWD-2655

August 2017

There are two new fields to the customer record.

- Override Membership Level: This is a second field to store a membership level for the customer record. This field is blank by default in a new customer record, but can be manually edited. Users must have the appropriate security rights to manually assign membership levels in order to edit this field. Security permissions are recommended as the capability to change Membership Level allows the Associate/Manager to invoke automatic price discounts and/or other membership benefits.
- Override Membership Expires: This is a date field users can set to override when the membership expires.

Both fields are blank by default in a new customer record, and users must have the appropriate security rights to manually assign a membership level to edit this field.

These fields allow for defining a "second" membership level to a customer. Or, another option is to use these fields on a Sales Receipt as the "active" membership. By doing this second options, you can apply a Sales Receipt discount or special price associated with the membership level.

If there is a defined expiration date within range and the new setting below is true, then:

- If Override Membership Type is *Price Level* OR regular Membership Type is *Price Level*, any "base" membership is ignored for discounting and this override membership will be used.
- If BOTH Override Membership Type and regular Membership Type is *Percent*, then the higher percentage is applied.
- If the override membership is expired then the "base" membership is used.
- If no date is defined then the override membership is used.
- If the setting below is false, neither override membership level or expiration date is used.

If the **Membership Override** option on the Customer tab of a Sales Receipt is selected, this overrides BOTH the membership fields and the manually selected override membership (as is done currently).

For purchased memberships, member benefits take effect immediately. If a customer adds some items and then adds a membership as well, the membership benefits are applied to all items on the sale.

With the new settings enabled, if the customer already has an active membership but purchases a new membership (upgrading or extending the membership), then the PURCHASED membership takes effect, not the existing membership. The exception to this is if the customer has an Override Membership level on account and purchases a membership, then the Override membership is used.

New Security Setting

Settings > Sales > Sales Documents

- Use customer override membership for discounting
- Apply sold membership benefits to current sale

Settings > Customer > Device Customer Info > Edit

- Override Membership Level field
- Override Membership Expires field

With these settings enabled, the Override Membership field displays on the Financial tab in POS. If settings are disabled, this area is not visible.

iPad ᅙ		4:42 P	М			* 100% 📖
Jeffrey Stegall						
John Jan		_	_			
General Addresses Ship	To People	Notes Financi	al Accounts	Custom 1	Custom 2	
Quatamar #	200		ards on File			
Customer #:	322					
Status:	Member					
Person / Company:	Person		N	o Cards on I	-:!	
Price Level:			IN	o Cards on	-ne	
Employee:	No					
Employee.						
Override Membership						
Override Membership:	Donor					
Expires:	12/12/2018	24				
					_	
* - Required, A - One field with same lette	er required	Customer History	Customer Repor		Save	Cancel
A Teamwork Betail	100 1	ID: 10535				Build 4 83 700 940

CRM Teamwork D...: Demo03 -Customers Import Marketing Campaigns English POS Mode Values Settings * - Required Membership 162420793923 Membership Type Permanent Member Code Member Level Family Expiration Date 28/03/2017 Membership Type Donor Expiration Date 28/03/2017

Membership Type and Expiration Date fields are now visible in CRM.

Layaway Order Expiration

Version 5.10 - TWD-2723

August 2017

Layaway orders are now set to expire 60 days after creation. This applies to any Incomplete orders (not yet fulfilled), even if the deposit is paid in full.

50 days after an order is created, a notification email can be configured to automatically be sent to the customer, informing they have 10 days to complete the order. Once configured, this is automatically sent out by Teamwork.

Once the order expires, the deposit amount goes on the customer's account as store credit. All expired orders are automatically archived.

Populate FiscalDate Field During Posting

Version 5.10 - TFS # 54557

August 2017

We've made updates to populate the FiscalDate field during posting of Sales Receipts, Purchase Receipts, Adjustment Memos, Transfers In/Out, Drawer Memos, and new records.

CHQ Ledger – Tracking Cost Changes for LedgerDetail

Version 5.10 – TFS # 54178

August 2017

There is a new View/Table to quickly track cost changes for Ledger Detail. This is needed for fiscal reports.

New Ship Memo Item Field

Version 5.11 - TWD-3684

August 2017

We've added the following fields to the *ShipSalesOrderItem* table:

- SerialNumber
- SerialNumberCustomText1
- SerialNumberCustomText2
- SerialNumberCustomNumber1
- SerialNumberCustomDate1
- SerialNumberCustomFlag1
- SerialNumberCustomGUID1
- SerialNumberAssociateId

Right to Access Integrations Area in Settings

Version 5.10 - TWD-2734

August 2017

In the Settings area of CHQ there are security rights to restrict access to all areas except Integrations and Server Tasks.

We've now added security rights to restrict these areas, the same as for other areas.

Additionally, the Settings area is hidden completely from users without Settings access at all.

New Security Rights

Right Code	Right Name	Right Description
INTEGRATIONSETTINGS	Integration Settings CHQ	Access to Integration settings in CHQ

Settings for Email Address Verification

Version 5.11 – TWD-3772

August 2017

We've added a new email address verification feature that checks and validates that the entered email address is properly formatted and valid (meaning there are no spaces, has an @ sign, etc.).

Various prompts will display for the associate to fill out the field, or that the address is incorrect and needs to be fixed.

Two examples of these prompts are shown below.



If the Email 1 field is set as a required field, the following prompt displays if it has been left empty.



Depending on the settings, a verification prompt might display for the associate to verify that the customer's email address is correct.



Require Ready to Fill to Sell SO Items

Version 5.12 - TWD-4982

August 2017

When enabled, this setting only allows filling Sales Orders that are marked *Ready to Fill*. When this setting is not in use, items are flagged as *Ready to Fill* by default.

This setting can be found in Settings > Order Management > Customer Orders > General area.



Contact Records Type

Version 5.10 - TWD-2659

August 2017

Under Settings > Customer > Contact Type, there's a new drop-down selection field for selecting the type of contact being added (such as child or spouse).

Users can add as many types of contacts as desired and may edit existing records.

	inventory	purchasing sale	s analytics	services	settings
search O	contact type				
▹ security	new edit				
▹ company settings	type	list order 🔺	archived		
 location settings 	Secondary	1			
 inventory / catalog 	Child	2			
▲ customer					
customer settings					
ship to address types					
preset customer options					
customer required fields					
contact required fields					
contact type					
universal customer search					
device customer info					
titles					
▶ custom fields					
▶ sales					

Selecting **New** or **Edit** brings up the *Contact Type* dialog.

contact type			
	type: list order: archived:	Primary 1	*
* - required			
		save	cancel

The maximum length for the *Type* field is 25 characters, and must be a unique entry.

The *Contact Type* field also displays under Settings > Customer > Contact Required Fields.

TEAMWORK		inventory	purchasing	sales	analytics	services	settings			
	Q	contact required	fields							
▶ security	^	edit								
 company settings 		field 🔺		required		convert entry		notify	# of Days	
 location settings 		custom date 6								
inventory / catalog		custom date 7								
customer		custom date 8								
customer settings		custom flag 2								
ship to address types		custom lookup 5								
preset customer options		custom lookup 6								
customer required fields		email 1								
contact required fields		email 2								
universal customer search		first name								
device customer info		gender								
titles		home page last name								
 custom fields 		middle name								
→ sales		phone 1								
order management		phone 2								
drawer management		phone 3								
purchasing		phone 4								
transfers		position								
→ printing		postal code								
reports		state								
eCommerce	C	title								
schadular	~	type								
root 🗧	C									

eneral	Notes Cu	ustom				
	First Name:	Lori	* MI:	Persor	ı #:	
	Last Name:	Stegall	*	Inact	ve: No	
	Position:	Wife		Ту	pe: Secondary	
	Title:	Mrs	Touch			
	Gender:	Female	to add person	Address		
	Birthday:		image	Address 1:	201 Alderwood Lane	
	Email 1:	lori@gmail.com		* Address 2:		
	Email 2:			Postal Code:	94582	
	Phone 1:			City:	San Ramon	
	Phone 2:			State/Province:	CA	
	Phone 3:			Country:	US	*
	Phone 4:					
	Web Site:					

Under the General tab in POS, this field displays as *Type*.

Entries in this field display in the People tab, as shown below.

এ হ Jeffrey St	tegall		2:01 PM		∦ 100% (
General A	ddresses Ship	To People	Notes Financial	Accounts Custom 1 Custom 2	
New Edi	t Delete			Q 5	earch
Last Name	First Name	Position	Phone 1	Email 1	Туре
Stegall	Lori			lori@gmail.com	Secondary
Stegall	Sally	Daughter		12345678@internal.moma.org	Child

Contact			
♥ General			
First Name	Lori	*	Use as Default
Middle Name		Person #	
Last Name	Stegall	* Inactive	No
Position	Wife	Туре	Secondary 👻
Title	Mrs 💌	* Address	
Gender	Female	Address 1	201 Alderwood Lane
Birthday	10 19 yyyy	Address 2	
Email 1	lori@gmail.com	County	USA 💌

In CRM, this *Type* field displays on the General tab when creating a new contact.

This field is also present in Client Book.

Edit Person	
Euit Person	Save
Address 1 201 Alderwood Lane	
Address 2	Add
Postal Code 94582	
^{City} San Ramon	
State/Province	
CA	
Country	
US	
Type •	
Secondary	
Inactive]
No	
	Address 1 201 Alderwood Lane Address 2 Postal Code 94582 City San Ramon State/Province CA Country US Type * Secondary Inactive

miTPV Payment Processing

Version 5.11 – TWD-3877

August 2017

We've added support of the new payment processor miTPV to both iPad POS and CHQ.

Extended Simplified Sales Order API with Custom Fields

Version 5.12 - TWD-5044

August 2017

In order to support selling memberships online, we've extended the Simplified Sales Order API. The following custom fields are added to Sales Order Item:

- 4 Custom Text
- 4 Custom Flag
- 4 Custom Number
- 4 Custom Decimal
- 4 Custom Date

Purchasing

Matching Vendor Invoice – Unmatch

Version 5.11 - TWD-3678

August 2017

This feature adds the capability to unmatch posted matching memos in order to perform the reverse or reverse/redo functionality in Purchase Receipts, or edit a Vendor Invoice that was matched.

Vendor Invoices can only have the status of Matched or Not Matched (Unmatched has been renamed to Not Matched).

- Matched: The Vendor Invoice is linked to a finalized Matching Memo.
- Unmatched: The Vendor Invoice is NOT linked to a finalized Matching Memo.

There is a new History button on the Vendor Invoices list view.

new	edit c	reate matchin	g memo re	move archive	history	a	utomatch				filter 💌
invoice #	universal #	status	vendor name	purchase order #	invoice date	qty	cost	file	matching memo #	archived	exporte
58	100000158	matched	qwe	373	01/20/2017	0	\$0.00		56		
3	100000033	matched	qwe	179	11/10/2016	0	\$0.00		7		
53	100000253	matched	qwe	738	03/03/2017	0	\$0.00		84		
47	100000247	matched	qwe	738	03/02/2017	0	\$0.00		82		
55	100000255	matched	qwe	754	03/06/2017	0	\$0.00		86		
19	1000000119	matched	321	tati 330	01/10/2017	4	\$10.00		34		
61	100000261	matched	qwe	755	03/07/2017	0	\$0.00		90		
1	100000091	matched	321	287	01/04/2017	0	\$0.00		18		
32	100000232	matched	qwe	738	02/28/2017	0	\$0.00		76		
16	1000000116	matched	qwe	326	01/10/2017	0	\$9.00		31		

Selecting **History** opens the *Matching History* dialog, as shown below. This dialog displays all Invoice Matching Memos (with the status of *Finalized* or *Unmatched*) that are linked to the Vendor Invoice.

matching memo #	matching memo status	exported	
1072	unmatched		
1073	unmatched	\checkmark	
1074	unmatched	\checkmark	
1075	unmatched	\checkmark	
1076	finalized	\checkmark	
			_

Selecting **View** opens a read-only dialog for the selected memo. Click **Close** to close this dialog and return to the Vendor Invoices screen.

A History button also displays in the Vendor Invoice Edit dialog.

general	universal #:	100000281		custom		
general	invoice #:	281	*	d3:	03/21/2017	Ê
billing	invoice date:	03/14/2017	<u>0−0</u> ⊞	custom text 1:		
user info	vendor:	Adidas	▼ *	custom text 2:		
	vendor (ref. #):			custom text 3:		
	universal po #:	100000817		custom text 4:		
	purchase order #:	799	*	custom text 5:		
	qty:	2		custom text 6:		
	cost:	\$250.00		custom date 1:		Ē
	file:	<u>67.png</u>	\otimes	custom date 2:		
	status:	not matched		custom date 4:		#
	matching memo #:	not matched		custom date 5:		<u></u>
	archived:			custom date 6:		₽ #
	exported:			custom number 1:		
	notes:			custom number 3		
	hoho					
	hono					
	* - required					

Invoice Matching

The status options for matching memos are Held, Finalized, and Unmatched (Posted has been renamed to Finalized).

Under Invoice Matching list view, there is a new Unmatch button (visible only with the appropriate security rights enabled).

status unmatched unmatched unmatched unmatched finalized held finalized unmatched finalized	memo date + 03/31/2017 03/29/2017 03/25/2017 03/13/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017	created date 03/01/2017 12:16 PM 03/02/2017 11:43 AM 03/07/2017 10:35 AM 03/13/2017 10:24 AM 03/06/2017 1:05 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM	vendor name qwe qwe qwe qwe qwe qwe qwe qwe qwe qw	purchase ord 738 755 770 viktor import33 754
unmatched unmatched unmatched finalized held finalized unmatched	03/29/2017 03/25/2017 03/13/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017	03/02/2017 11:43 AM 03/07/2017 10:35 AM 03/13/2017 10:35 AM 03/06/2017 1:05 PM 03/06/2017 1:05 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM	qwe qwe qwe qwe qwe	738 755 770 viktor import33 754
unmatched unmatched finalized held finalized unmatched	03/25/2017 03/13/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017	03/07/2017 10:35 AM 03/13/2017 10:24 AM 03/06/2017 1:05 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM	qwe qwe qwe qwe	755 770 viktor import3: 754
unmatched finalized held finalized unmatched	03/13/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017	03/13/2017 10:24 AM 03/06/2017 1:05 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM	qwe qwe qwe	770 viktor import3: 754
finalized held finalized unmatched	03/06/2017 03/06/2017 03/06/2017	03/06/2017 1:05 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM	qwe qwe	viktor import3
held finalized unmatched	03/06/2017 03/06/2017	03/06/2017 12:48 PM 03/06/2017 12:48 PM	qwe	754
finalized unmatched	03/06/2017	03/06/2017 12:48 PM		
unmatched			qwe	754
	03/06/2017			/ 34
finalized.		03/06/2017 12:48 PM	qwe	754
Inalized	03/03/2017	03/03/2017 7:59 PM	qwe	737
held	03/03/2017	03/03/2017 7:54 PM	qwe	738
urchase receipts				
receipt cost: \$1	168.00	receipt qty:	5	
invoice cost: \$0	0.00	invoice qty:	4	
credit cost: \$1	168.00	qty diff.:	1	
	receipt cost: \$	receipt cost: \$168.00 invoice cost: \$0.00 credit cost: \$168.00	receipt cost: \$168.00 receipt qty: invoice cost: \$0.00 invoice qty:	receipt cost: \$168.00 receipt qty: 5 invoice cost: \$0.00 invoice qty: 4

Selecting Unmatch is a nonreversible process which unmatches the selected memo from the related vendor invoice.

This button also displays at the bottom of any tab on the Invoice Matching Memo dialog.

	credit cost: \$168.00 notes:	qty diff: 1	custom 6:	
-				
	unmatch			close

♠ I CHQ	i	nvoice r	natch	ning				
edit re	move	finaliz	e	unmatch		finaliz	ze all	
memo #	progre	255	unive	rsal #	sta	tus		memo o
78			100000079		unmatch	ned	03/31/	2017

Please note that the Finalize button replaces the Posted button, and Finalize All replaces Posted All.

The Remove button is only enabled with the security right PI-DELETE.

The following columns are removed from the Invoice Matching screen.

- Actual Cost
- Adjustment Cost

Additionally, the *Adjustment Cost* section is removed from the Details panel.

The *Receipt Cost* field replaces the *Actual Cost* field.

details	vendor invoices	purchase receipts	
purchase order #: purchase order qty: purchase order cost:	90	receipt cost: \$168.00 invoice cost: \$0.00 credit cost: \$168.00	receipt qty: invoice qty: qty diff.:
84 records		page 1 of 9	10 25 50

Invoice Matching Memo

General Tab

On the General tab of a finalized Invoice Matching Memo, the *Adjustment Cost* section is removed and *Receipt Cost* has replaced the *Actual Cost* field.

invoice match	iing memo - 78 - fir	nalized			
general	general			custom	
items	universal #: memo #:	1000000079		l1: custom date 1:	- 1
global fees		finalized		custom text 1:	- 1
billing	memo date:			custom text 2: custom text 3:	
user info	invoice date: vendor:			custom text 3:	
	purchase order #:			custom text 5:	
	purchase order qty: purchase order cost:			custom text 6: custom 1:	
	totals	\$0.00		custom 2:	
	receipt cost: \$168.00		receipt qty: 5	custom 3:	
	invoice cost: \$0.00		invoice qty: 4	custom 4: custom 5:	
	credit cost: \$168.00)	qty diff: 1	custom 6:	
	notes:				
	unmatch				close

Items Tab

When viewing the Items tab on a finalized Invoice Matching Memo, selecting the *Receipt #* now links directly to the Purchase Receipt.

This link also displays in the Purchase Receipts panel.

invoice matching memo - 78 - held							
general	edit fees					search	Q
items	receipt # 🔺	PLU	qty	receipt ext. cost	receipt ext. fee amt		
global food	<u>671</u>	43810	1	\$0.00	\$0.0	ю	
global fees	<u>679</u>	43810	4	\$168.00	\$0.0	0	
billing							
user info							
	iter	n details	tatala	vendor invoice	-		
			totals		s purchase recei	pts	_
	receipt # 🔺	qty		cost \$0.00		_	
	<u>671</u> 670		4	\$168.00		_	
	<u>679</u>		4	\$100.00			
	2 record	s		📕 🖣 page	1 of 1	10 25 50	
					ho	old finalize	cancel

In the Totals panel, *Receipt Cost* displays instead of *Actual Cost*.

item det	ails totals	vendor invoices	purchase receipts		
receipt cost: invoice cost: credit cost:	\$0.00	invoi	pt qty: 5 ce qty: 4 y diff.: 1		
2 records		age 1	of 1 🕨 🕅	10 25 50	
unmatch					close

CHQ RELEASE NOTES

The following columns are removed from the Items tab:

- Actual Disc. %
- Actual Disc. Amt
- Actual Ext. Cost Incl. Fee
- Actual Ext. Cost
- Actual Ext. Fee Amt
- Actual Unit Cost
- Adjustment Cost

User Info Tab

On the User Info tab, there are several new fields:

- Finalized Date: The date when the Matched Memo was finalized.
- Finalized By: The user who finalized the Matching Memo.
- Unmatched Date: The date when the Matched Memo was unmatched.
- Unmatched By: The user who unmatched the Matching Memo.

invoice match	ning memo - 78 - finaliz	zed
general		03/01/2017 12:16 PM ROOT ROOT
global fees		03/02/2017 3:52 PM ROOT ROOT
billing	unmatched date:	
user info	unmatched by:	
	last modified date: last modified by:	03/02/2017 3:52 PM ROOT ROOT
	exported date: exported by:	
	exported by:	
	unmatch	close
In the View/Edit Item dialog, the following fields are removed:

- Actual Unit Cost
- Actual Disc. Amt
- Disc. %
- Actual Ext. Cost
- Actual Ext. Fee Amt
- Actual Ext. Cost Incl. Fee
- Adjustment Cost

invoice match	ning memo - 78 - finali	zed - PLU 43810		
general	qty: receipt unit cost:		custom	
fees	receipt ext. cost: receipt ext. fee amt: receipt ext. cost incl. fee:	\$0.00 \$0.00	11: custom date 1: custom text 1: custom text 2: custom text 3: custom text 4: custom text 5: custom text 6: custom 1: custom 1: custom 2: custom 3: custom 4:	
				close

Purchase Order History

Version 5.10 - TWD-2633

August 2017

We've added a new read-only History dialog to Purchase Orders. This dialog only displays actions related to the Purchase Order (from PO Import, OMS, Visual Allocation, etc.)

To access this dialog, select **History** from the Purchase Orders list view.

		purchase	orders					
	new ec	lit remove	archive	print email PO	history			filter 👻
	order #	universal order #	progress	order date -	status	SO	vendor name	ship-to location
ô								
â	392	100000399		01/26/2017	held		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	391	100000398		01/26/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	390	100000397		01/26/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	389	100000396		01/25/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	388	100000395		01/25/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	387	100000394		01/25/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	386	100000393		01/25/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	385	100000392		01/25/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut
	384	100000391		01/25/2017	released		qwe	VIKTOR - Viktor Lut

This dialog shows the history and past action made to this Purchase Order.

action	action date	performed by	status	archived	qty ordered	total	sent email to			
nold	09/23/2016 12:14 PM	Marina Kozhevnikova	held		10	\$445.00				
nold	12/16/2016 8:44 AM	ROOT ROOT	held		11	\$670.00				
release	12/16/2016 8:48 AM	ROOT ROOT	released		11	\$670.00				
	12/29/2016 9:50 AM		released		11					
re-release	01/11/2017 10:48 AM	Marina Kozhevnikova	released		11	\$670.00				
email PO	01/11/2017 10:49 AM	ROOT ROOT	released		11	\$670.00	mk@gmail.com, sk@g			
archive	01/17/2017 8:49 AM	ROOT ROOT	released	\checkmark	11	\$670.00				
unarchive	01/17/2017 8:53 AM	ROOT ROOT	released		11	\$670.00				
			8 records							

The History button is also on the User Info tab for both a Held and Released PO. To access this screen, select a PO from the list on the main screen and click **Edit** then click the **User Info** tab.

general created dat: 02/32017 652 PM items released dat: global fres released by: billing issue modified by: Kothemikova Marina user info print spread global for biory hold release care general created by: 10/252017 1007 AM general created by: NOCT ROOT items released dat: 01/252017 1007 AM greated date: 01/252017 0007	purchase ord	er - 39 - held				
items released date: global fees ist modified by: billing ist modified by: terr info ist modified by: ser info ist modified by: print spread global fees print spread global fees 01/26/2017 10:07 AM created by: general created by: general created by: items released date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM created by: global fees 01/26/2017 10:07 AM global fees 10/26/2017 10:07 AM global fees 01/26/2017 10:07 AM global fees 10/26/2017 10:07 AM billing last modified by: ROOT ROOT items released by: ROOT ROOT items released by: ROOT ROOT items last modified by: ROOT ROOT items last modified by: ROOT ROOT	general					
global fees billing is read global fee feese billing is pread global fee created data: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM general created dat: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM is released bi: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM billing is released billing is released bis released billing is released billing is released billing is			Kozhevnikova Marina			
billing last modified dat: 02/13/2017 6:52 PM user info print spread global fet history hold release cancel general created dat: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM created by: ROOT ROOT ltems created by: ROOT ROOT						
user info			02/13/2017 6:52 PM			
print spread global fet history hold release created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM general created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM general created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM general created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM global fees created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM global fees created by: ROOT ROOT liling last modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM billing last modified by: ROOT ROOT	billing	last modified by:	Kozhevnikova Marina			
purchase order - 391 - released general created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM items released date: 01/26/2017 10:08 AM global fees released by: ROOT ROOT billing last modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM	user info					
general created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM general created by: ROOT ROOT items released date: 01/26/2017 10:08 AM global fees released by: ROOT ROOT last modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM billing last modified by: ROOT ROOT	print	spread global fees	history	hold	release	cancel
general created date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM general created by: ROOT ROOT items released date: 01/26/2017 10:08 AM global fees released by: ROOT ROOT last modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM billing last modified by: ROOT ROOT						
general created by: ROOT ROOT items released date: 01/26/2017 10:08 AM global fees released by: ROOT ROOT last modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM billing last modified by: ROOT ROOT	purchase o	order - 391 - released				
items released date: 01/26/2017 10:08 AM global fees released by: ROOT ilast modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM billing last modified by: ROOT	general					
global fees released by: ROOT ROOT last modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM billing last modified by: ROOT ROOT	items					
billing last modified date: 01/26/2017 10:07 AM last modified by: ROOT ROOT	global fees					
		last modified by	: ROOT ROOT			
	user into					

At the bottom of the screen, for a released PO, the Email PO button is only enabled if the requires fields are already populated. Selecting this brings up a dialog to directly email the PO.

print email PO	spread global fees history	re-release cancel
	email PO send email to: send copy to: Note: This is not a reversi preview	adidas@gmail.com; sk@gmail.com mk@gmail.com ible operation. All changes in the purchase order will be saved.

Support of Avalara Services in Sales Orders

Version 5.11 – TWD-3807

August 2017

We've included support of Avalara tax service to iPad POS Sales Orders for Send Sale and Web Sale Orders. We've also added tax calculation to CHQ.

In CHQ in the Ship Memos dialog, if the Ship Memo has tax calculated by a tax service, the Ship To address of items is unable to be changed.

Avalara Integration – Eliminate Integrator

Version 5.11 - TWD-3802

August 2017

We've added Avalara as a core part of our system and eliminated the use of Integrator.

Selected Row Should Open on Enter

Version 5.11 - TWD-3049

August 2017

Under Purchase Receipts > List view, select any record and press enter to open that record. So when a receipt is highlighted (selected), pressing enter automatically opens the receipt.

Purchase Order Export API – SO Item ID

Version 5.11 - TWD-4228

August 2017

There are new Sales Order number (based on the SalesOrderNo field in a Sales Order) and SO Line Number (based on LineNo.) fields added to the Purchase Order Export API.

Search and Filter by Vendor No.

Version 5.12 - TWD-5491

August 2017

You can now filter or search by *Vendor No* in Purchasing > Vendors.

Auto-Create Drop Ship POs

Version 5.12 - TWD-4395

August 2017

This feature allows for auto-issuing a Purchase Order for SFV (Ship from Vendor) items.

Drop Ship POs are automatically created for items after the status of a Sales Order is changed to **Accepted**. This also updates the status to PO Issued.

Inventory

Visual Allocation

Version 5.11 - TWD-2717

August 2017

Visual Allocation is a feature that allows users to visualize the stock distribution of a style and easily click to purchase or transfer items. Below are some terms used for Visual Allocation:

- ATS Available to Sell: The quantity on-hand that is available to sell to customers.
- **PATS Potential Available to Sell**: The quantity that will be available to sell, taking into account incoming purchase order quantities, in-transit quantities, and incoming transfer order quantities.
- NPATS New Potential Available to Sell: The new PATS quantity as a result of purchases of transfers specified in the Visual Allocation decision matrix for the item.
- **ATP Available to Purchase**: The quantity is available at an external location for purchase from a vendor.

To access this feature, go to Inventory > Visual Allocation. Users must have the appropriate security rights enabled to use this feature.

TEAMYORKICHQ	inventory purchasing sales analytics services settings	
styles & items	search	Q
damage memos	new list	
stock count	recent filter	
transfer orders	6 44 Test 08/08 08/08/2017 released VA #	
transfer memos	arme 43 qwerty released name 08/02/2017	
visual allocation	Image: 3 bit of 1/25 of 1/25/2017 Test of 1/25 reversed Image: 3 bit of 1/25 reversed	
adjustment memos	Image: Status Test pt 2 07/12 status 07/12/2017 reversed	*
price memos	Image: bit 07/12 or/12/2017 Test 07/12 released style #	
kits	39 testt do not show archived	~
promo groups	36 Visual Allocation Test released	-
	31 Test 06/15 06/15/2017 held created by	*
	30 Training 06/13/2017 held last edited date	
	29 06/12/17 released 06/12/2017	
		ρ

Here you can view the most recent worksheets, including those that are posted and those that are on hold (not yet posted).

At the top right of the screen, use the Search bar to find a specific worksheet that you don't see listed. Or use the Filter box below to narrow down the list results, if you're not exactly sure what you're looking for.

TEAMWORKICHQ	invento	ory purchasing	sales ar	nalytics services settings	
styles & items			(search	
damage memos	new li	st	_		
stock count	recent			filter	
transfer orders	a 44	Test 08/08 08/08/2017	released	VA #	
transfer memos	a 43	qwerty 08/02/2017	released		
visual allocation	a 42	Test 07/25 07/25/2017	revensed		
adjustment memos	a 41	Test pt 2 07/12 07/12/2017	reversed		-
price memos	a 40	Test 07/12 07/12/2017	released	style #	
kits	39	testt 07/11/2017	held	do not show archived	· ·
promo groups	36	Visual Allocation Test 07/11/2017	released		
	31	Test 06/15 06/15/2017	held		· ·
	30	Training 06/13/2017	held		
	29	06/12/17 06/12/2017	released		
	5 27	test1	reversed		

Click the **List** button to see a list view of the most recent memos.

From either this list view screen or the main screen, click **New** to create a new Visual Allocation worksheet.

CHQ visual allocation											
new	new edit remove archive										
VA #	name	status	# of styles	values calculated	type	created by	created 🕶				
46	SW Worksheet	held	2	\checkmark		ROOT ROOT	08/22/2017 2:21 PM				
44	Test 08/08	released	1	\checkmark	purchase/transfer	ROOT ROOT	08/08/2017 9:32 AM				
43	qwerty	released	1	\checkmark	purchase/transfer	ROOT ROOT	08/02/2017 11:56 AM				
42	Test 07/25	reversed	1	\checkmark	purchase/transfer	ROOT ROOT	07/25/2017 11:04 AM				
41	Test pt 2 07/12	reversed	1	\checkmark	purchase/transfer	ROOT ROOT	07/12/2017 4:22 PM				
40	Test 07/12	released	1	\checkmark	purchase/transfer	ROOT ROOT	07/12/2017 3:18 PM				
39	testt	held	1	\checkmark	purchase	ROOT ROOT	07/11/2017 1:57 PM				
36	Visual Allocatio	released	1	\checkmark	purchase/transfer	ROOT ROOT	07/11/2017 1:19 PM				
31	Test 06/15	held	1	\checkmark		ROOT ROOT	06/15/2017 10:10 AM				
30	Training	held	2	\checkmark	purchase/transfer	ROOT ROOT	06/13/2017 3:08 PM				

Until it is posted, Visual Allocation worksheets have the status of *Held*, as displayed in the heading. The *VA Worksheet #*, 47 in this case, is auto-generated by Teamwork in increasing numerical order with each additional worksheet that is created.

VA worksheet	t - 47 - held					
	VA worksheet #:	47				
general	status:	held				
styles						
	worksheet name:				*	
orders	worksheet notes:	1				
release errors						
		0			08/22/2017 11:26 AM	
	styles:	0				
	transfer orders:	0		created by:	ROOT ROOT	
	total TO quantity:	0		last edited date:	08/22/2017 11:26 AM	
				last edited by:	ROOT ROOT	
	purchase orders:	0		· · · · · ·		
	total PO quantity:	0		reversed date:		
	total PO cost:	0	cost	reversed by:		
	styles analyzed:			released date:		
	styles analyzed by:			released by:		
	* - required					
				hold	release	discard

General Tab

The *General* tab is where you'll enter general worksheet information.

Until it is posted, Visual Allocation worksheets have the status of *Held*, as displayed in the heading. The *VA Worksheet* #, 47 in this case, is auto-generated by Teamwork in increasing numerical order with each additional worksheet that is created.

VA worksheet	t - 47 - held					
general styles orders release errors	VA worksheet #: status: worksheet name: worksheet notes:	held			*	
	styles: transfer orders: total TO quantity: purchase orders:	0		created by:	08/22/2017 11:26 AM ROOT ROOT 08/22/2017 11:26 AM ROOT ROOT	
	total PO quantity: total PO cost: styles analyzed: styles analyzed by: * - required	0	recalculate cost	reversed date: reversed by: released date: released by:		
				hold	release	discard

The only required field on this tab is a *Worksheet Name*. Additionally, you can enter any *Worksheet Notes* to help provide more information on this worksheet.

Before releasing this worksheet, you'll need to move to the Styles tab to add inventory. However, select **Hold** to put the worksheet on hold to work on at a later time, or **Discard** to delete the worksheet entirely.

The fields on the bottom half of this tab are purely for information only.

styles:	0		created date:	08/22/2017 11:26 AM
transfer orders:	0		created by:	ROOT ROOT
total TO quantity:	-		last edited date:	08/22/2017 11:26 AM
purchase orders:	0		last edited by:	ROOT ROOT
total PO quantity:	0 re	ecalculate	reversed date:	
total PO cost:	0	cost	reversed by:	
styles analyzed:			released date:	
styles analyzed by:			released by:	
* - required				
			hold	release discard

Once information has been added from the Style tab, these fields with update with values, including the number of styles on this worksheet, TO and PO values, the date and time the styles were analyzed, and more.

If you think the values look wrong or should be updated, click **Recalculate Cost** to automatically update the values (if there is any change).

styles:			07/11/2017 1:57 PM ROOT ROOT	
transfer orders:	-			
total TO quantity:	0	last edited date:	07/11/2017 1:58 PM	
purchase orders:	1	last edited by:	ROOT ROOT	
total PO quantity:	10 recalculate	reversed date:		
total PO cost:	105 cost	reversed by:		
styles analyzed:	07/11/2017 1:58 PM	released date:		
styles analyzed by:	ROOT ROOT	released by:		
* - required				
		hold	release	discard

Styles Tab

The *Styles* tab is where you'll add styles or items for allocation.

If you have an Excel sheet of adjustments to import, click the **Import** button to quickly import this information.

general			yles import				Q
tyles	style #		2				
orders	style #	store	description1	brand	dcss	PO qty	
elease errors							
	<						>
	• 0 rec		🔹 🖌 page	1 of 1 🕨	10 25	5 50	

Use the search field at the top right of the screen to do a general (all info) search.

VA worksheet	- 47 - held					
general			import		search	Q
styles	style #	search to add 🛛 🖌	C			
orders	style #	store	description1	brand	dcss	PO qty
release errors						

Alternatively, use the *Search to Add* field to look up specific items.

Here the field is set to *Style #*, but this can be changed to search by *PLU* or in include *All Info*.

VA worksheet	- 47 - held		
general			import
styles	style # 🔍		Q
orders	style #	store	descript
	PLU	30010	ucocript
release errors	all info		

style #	skirt	
style #	store	des

Type the item you're looking for into the search field and either click the Search icon or hit the **Enter** key on the keyboard.

If there are search results for that item, these come up in a new screen.

			all in	fo skirt	Q (8)
style # 🔺	store	description1	dcss	brand	manu
3	Leather skirt		Mens - Accessor		Amanda Parson De
17	SP/BUTTERCRM SHAMPO	DER	Bath & Body	Eliza J Dot	*123Estheticplus
279	Women's Skirt		1011 - 5 - 1	7 For All	Aldo

Select the item you want to adjust and click **Ok**. Or, if this is the wrong item, either select **Cancel** or type something different into the search field and run the search again.

Selecting an item automatically adds it to the main screen. Add as many items as needed by following the above steps.

general	allocate re	move analyze styles	import				Q
tyles	all info		Q				
orders	style #	store	description1	brand	dcss	PO qty	
elease errors	3	Leather skirt			Mens - Acces	0	
	<						>

When you're finished added the styles you want, click **Analyze Styles**.

VA worksheet	- 47 - held					
general	allocate ren	nove analyze styles	import			Q
styles	all info	search to)			
orders	style #	store	description1	brand	dcss	PO qty
release errors	3	Leather skirt			Mens - Acces	0
	69	Americana Pocket T-Shirt	Americana Pocket	Sol Angeles	Mens - Shirts	0

If you select Allocate first, this error dialog displays.



Selecting **Analyze Styles** brings up the following dialog. Click **Continue** if you're ready to continue with Visual Allocation (VA), or **Cancel** to return to the Styles screen to add or delete styles.



Selecting **Continue** brings up the *Analyze Styles* screen. This screen offers options for analyzing the styles to determine their sales value and Purchase Order/Transfer Order values for ATS (Available to Sell) and PATS (Potential Available to Sell).

The Analyze Style option can only be run once for a VA worksheet. However, any selected options are saved for the current user and used the next time the analyze dialog is opened.

analyze styles						
locations						
select group			select	locations		
 Iocation group 	•		\checkmark	location code 🔺	location name	
Not Grouped Ic	ocations			100	Clearwater Store	^
			\checkmark	1001	Aldo Montreal	
			\checkmark	1002	Aldo Quebec	- 1
				100P		
				101	Tampa Store	
				102	Orlando Store	
				103	Miami Store	~
			<			>
date ranges						
sales period 1:	< none >	Ŧ				
sales period 2:	< none >	Ψ.				
sales period 3:	< none >	-				
purchase orders:	< none >	*	*			
* - required						
					analyze styles	cancel

The *Select Group* area displays a list of all defined location groups. By default, all location groups are selected. You can either manually deselect the groups you want to exclude, or select the check mark box to deselect or select all.

analyze styles	
locations	
select group	
✓ location group ▲	
Not Grouped locations	

The *Select Locations* area displays a list of all locations for the selected location group. Again, by default, all location groups are selected. You can either manually deselect the groups you want to exclude, or select the check mark box to deselect or select all.

select	locations		
\checkmark	location code 🔺	location name	
\checkmark	100	Clearwater Store	~
\checkmark	1001	Aldo Montreal	
\checkmark	1002	Aldo Quebec	
\checkmark	100P		
\checkmark	101	Tampa Store	
\checkmark	102	Orlando Store	
\checkmark	103	Miami Store	~
<		>	

Locations selected from this area are displayed in the decision matrix. These locations are shown in the location group and the location order by location code. The decision matrix is used when allocating styles and is explained further in this section.

If you want one group to display higher than another then each group name needs to be modified to include a number value (this is done in Settings).

For example:

- 1-Warehouse locations
- 2-Northern California
- 3-Southern California
- 4-Outlets

Below these location fields is a *Date Ranges* area. Here you can define a date period for each sales period.

NOTE

You can't define a higher sales period unless a lower period is already defined. For example, if all three periods are defined but Period 2 is defined as *None*, then this disabled Period 3.

sales period 1:	< none >	~	
sales period 2:			
sales period 3:	< none >	Ψ	
purchase orders:	< none >	* *	
required			

Each period has a variety of pre-defined date periods. Use the scroll bar to view additional periods, then select the one you want to add.

sales period 1:	last 30 days - this year	~	
sales period 2:	this week - this year		
sales period 3:	last week - this year		
purchase orders:	last 2 weeks - this year		*
* - required	this month - this year		
	last month - this year		
	last 30 days - this year		
	last 90 days - this year		
	last 180 days this year		

Each selection adds additional fields for further information.

sales period 1:	last 30 days - this year	Ŧ	07/24/2017	tc	08/22/2017	<u></u>
sales period 2:	last 90 days - this year	-	05/25/2017	tc	08/22/2017	₽
sales period 3:	last 180 days - this year	~	02/24/2017	tc	08/22/2017	#
purchase orders:	last week	*	08/13/2017	to	08/19/2017	

When you've added all the information you want, click **Analyze Styles** to run the process.

Or select **Cancel** to return to the main screen without completing the process.

An information dialog displays if you selected to run the analysis. Click **Analyze** to continue or **Cancel** if this is not what you want to do.

analyze styles	
Analysis of styles may take some time to complete. not be able to add new styles to the worksheet onc	
analyze	cancel

Once analysis is complete, this returns you to the Styles tab on the VA Worksheet. In analysis is still in progress, a Progress column displays and you'll see a loading indicator.

Running analysis always calculates the values for ATS and PATS. Sales values are calculated as defined in the analysis dialog.

Any style with a defined *Like Style ID* and selected checkbox to use this, is included in calculating the analysis.

After analyzing styles, select **Allocate**. This brings up a decision matrix for that style, in this case, Style 3. This matrix can be opened before or after analysis is completed, however, when viewing before analysis, all sales, ATS, PATS, and NPATS values are blank.

The basic layout of the decision matrix is a grid. The columns at the top are *Locations*, *Values*, and then the *Style*.

For example, the circled information below displays the number of items potentially available to sell at the Clearwater Store

de sisiene and this	and and an effective	100							
decision matrix	- style #:	100							
values so	ort by: locat	ion code 🔍			ac	tion units 1	clear	all actions	•
location	values	Lavender Bath Salt		~	act	attr	src	trg	
In-Transit	InTran		11		Р		Beauti Phu	II 100	
Beauti Phull	out		-10						
100	ATS		-20						
Clearwater Store	PATS (21)		21						
	NPATS (31)		31						
	Sales 1 (0)								
	Sales 2 (0)								
	Sales 3 (1)		1						
	in (10)		10						
1001	ATS		-11						
Aldo Montreal	PATS (-1)		-1						
	NPATS (-1)		-1						
	Sales 1 (0)								
	Sales 2 (0)								
	Sales 3 (0)				<	_			>
1002 Aldo Ousbor	ATS			~		nsfer qty: 0		purchase qty: 1	-
							save	canc	el

NOTE

When using the decision matrix to define transfers, the *Allowed Transfer* matrix (as defined in Settings) is NOT used. This allows users to transfer from/to any combinations of displayed locations.

Adjust the *Sort By* drop-down to change how the display results are sorted, to your preference.

Click **Values** to open a dialog to choose values to display (rows) for each location/attribute combination.

0	decision matrix - sty	le #: 3							
	values sort by:	location co	de 🔻			action	units	1	clear all
1	location	values		Leather skirt	^	act	attr		SIC
	In-Transit	InTran							
	Amanda Parson Design	out							
	100	ATS							

Any selections made on this *Values* dialog are displayed for all styles on the worksheet. Here you can modify your matrix view by selected what to display and what to hide.

values			
locations			
	show in-transit:	\checkmark	
location labels			
	show location code: w external location code: external location vendor:		
values			
	d available to sell (PATS): available to sell (NPATS): sales period 1 (Sales 1): sales period 2 (Sales 2): sales period 3 (Sales 3):	V V V V	
movement values			
display in matrix:	in and out values	~	
display			
display values as:	numbers		
		save	cancel

Under the Movement Values heading, the two values for the *Display in Matrix* field are *In and Out Values* or *Net*.

In and Out Values indicates that two separate rows will display, one for incoming quantities to the location and one row for outgoing quantities for that location.

Net means there is one row only to show the net difference between the in and out values.

If more quantity is coming into the location than going out, this displays as a positive value in blue text. If more quantity is leaving the location than coming in, this displays as a negative value in red text.

movem	ent values			
	display in matrix:	in and out values	~	
display				

The last heading, Display is where you can select for the decision matrix to display all numerical values or two different symbols to display values.

The options for this drop-down are *Numbers*, *Dots*, or *Pipes*.

Selecting **Numbers** (the default) displays as shown below.

cision matrix - style #: 00-	276														
values sort *										action	units	1	clear all	actio	ons 👻
								TAU	JPE						
Location	Values	M10	M10.5	M11	M11.5	M12	M13	M14	M6.5	M7	M7.5	M8	M8.5	M9	M9
		MEDIUM	MEDIUM	MEDI											
n-Transit	InTran		2				1				_	1			
Vendor Name	out			3					2				1		
External Location Code External Location Name	ATP	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
Associated VA Vendor Name	our														
Store Code	ATS	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
Store Name Store External ID	PATS	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
	NPATS	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
	Sales 1	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	

Selecting **Dots** displays as shown below.

decision matri	x - style #:	100
values s	ort by: locat	ion code 👻
location	values	Lavender Bath Salt
Aldo Quebec	PATS (13)	13
	NPATS (13)	13
	Sales 1 (0)	
	Sales 2 (0)	
	Sales 3 (0)	
101	ATS	
Tampa Store	PATS (6)	
	NPATS (6)	
	Sales 1 (0)	
	Sales 2 (0)	
	Sales 3 (1)	

Selecting **Pipes** displays as shown below.

decision matrix	x - style #: 100			
values s	ort by: location cod	e 🔻		
location	values	Lavender Bath Salt		
101	ATS			
Tampa Store	PATS (6)			
	NPATS (6)			
	Sales 1 (0)			
	Sales 2 (0)			
	Sales 3 (1)		1	
102				

When finished, select **Save** to close the dialog and apply the changes. Or click **Cancel** to close without updating.

display				
	display values as:	numbers		-
			save	cancel

This returns you to the decision matrix. In the *Action Units* field, enter a numerical value that will be entered when clicking attributes for a location.

Click **Clear All** to quickly clear all proposed actions (clear all POs and TOs scheduled to be created).



The Actions button hides or displays this panel.

action units 1 clear all actions -						
<u> </u>			a	tion units 1	clear al	actions
		6	act	attr	src	trg
	1111		Р		Beauti Phull	100
	11111					
	11111	_				
		-				
	1					
	Ш					
	Ш		<			
~		×	tra	insfer qty: 0	F	ourchase qty: 10
			-			
save cancel					save	cancel

When finished viewing the decision matrix, click **Save** to close the dialog and return to the VA worksheet.

At any time (before or after analysis), select the style you want and then click **Remove** to delete the style from the worksheet.

VA worksheet	VA worksheet - 47 - held										
general	allocate	cate remove analyze styles import									
styles	all info	earch to add 🛛 🔎									
orders	style #	store	description1	brand	dcss	PO qty					
release errors	3	Leather skirt			Mens - Acces	0					
	69	Americana Pocket T-Shirt	Americana Pocket	Sol Angeles	Mens - Shirts	0					

When finished with the VA, click **Hold** to place the worksheet on hold to continue at a later time, or if you're finished, select **Release** to finalize the release the worksheet. **Discard** will cancel the worksheet without saving anything.

<							>
	2 records	page 1 of 1		10	25	50	
			hold		re	lease	discard

Orders Tab

Once a worksheet is released, the *Orders* and *Release Errors* tabs enable. The Orders tab, as shown below, displays all orders associated with this worksheet, as well as their status, order quantity, locations, etc.

Orders are sorted by either Transfer Orders or Purchase Orders. Click either the Transfers or Purchases button to display those orders.

At a glance, the total number of TOs and POs on this worksheet display in the upper right corner.

VA worksheet	- 40 - relea	ased				
general	view	transfers	purchases			TOS: 2 POS: 3
styles	order #	status	order qty	qty in	qty out	source location
orders	128	released	5			100 - Clearwater Store
release errors	129	released	24			1001 - Aldo Montreal
	<					>
	2 re	ecords	I€ €	page 1 of	1 🕨 🕅	10 25 50
reverse						close

To view more information on an order, select the one you want from the list and click **View**.

Transfer Orders – View

General Tab

For Transfer Orders, the General tab displays basic details about the order, including the order number, linked Visual Allocation worksheet, order date, etc. The only two fields able to be edited on this screen are *Order Date* and the *Notes* field.

transfer orde	r - 128 - released				
general	universal order #:				
0	order #:				
custom	reference #:				
items	VA worksheet:				
		released	7 (0-0)		
		07/12/2017 12:44 PM	*		
		100 - Clearwater Store			
	default target location:	105 - New York Store			
	created date:	07/12/2017 12:44 PM			
	created by:	ROOT ROOT			
	released date:	07/12/2017 12:44 PM			
	released by:	ROOT ROOT			
	last updated date:	08/22/2017 11:20 AM			
	last updated by:	ROOT ROOT			
	notes:				
	* - required				
quick transfer				release & archive	release

Custom Tab

The Custom tab displays any custom fields previously set up in Settings.

transfer orde	r - 128 - released		
general	Sender: Transfer Header:	•	
custom			
items			

Items Tab

Lastly, the Items tab shows all items currently on the order. To delete an item, select it from the list and click **Remove**. Or, to make changes to an item select **Edit**.

transfer order	- 128 - rele	eased									
general	edit re	emove									
custom	style #	search to	Q	qty to add:	1					filter	•
items	PLU 🔺	attribute 1	attribute 2	attribut	e 3	qty o	ordered	c	qty in	qty out	
	2397						5		0	0	
	<									2	>
	1 rec	ord	H	d page	1 of 1		10	25	50		
quick transfer							relea	se & ar	chive	releas	e

This brings up the edit item dialog, where you can make changes to either the *Quantity* or the *Target Location* where the items are shipping to.

At the bottom of the screen, the Quick Transfer button quickly creates an Out or In Memo in the background and transfers exactly what is on the TO

item 2397		
quantity: target location:	5 105 - New York Sto	re 🔻
	save	cancel

	<			>
	1 record	◀ ◀ page 1 of 1 ▶	10 25 50	
quick transfer			release & archive	release

To close the screen, click **Release**, or **Release and Archive** to change the worksheet to archived after releasing.

Purchase Order – View

General Tab

For Purchase Orders, the General tab displays basic details about the order, including the order number, linked Visual Allocation worksheet, vendor, ship-to location, order date, etc.

general	general		dates		
, 	universal order #:	100000348	order date:	07/12/2017 3:44 PM	
tems	order #:	344	ship date:		time days: 0
global fees	VA worksheet:	40	arrival date:	07/12/2017 🛗 *	
oilling	status:	released archived:	cancel date:	08/11/2017 🛗 *	
0	vendor ref. #:		custom		
user info	contract PO #:		PO Header Test:		
	vendor				
	vendor:	Beauti Phull			
	shipping method:				
	ship-to		totals		
	distribution type:	single location	qty ordered:	10	
	ship-to location:	101 - Tampa Store	qty received:	0	
			total amt:	\$105.00	
	notes:				
	* - required				

Items Tab

The Items tab shows all items currently on the order. To delete an item, select it from the list and click **Remove**. **Archive** marks the item was archived and removes it from the list. Or, to make changes to an item select **Edit**.

purchase orde	er - 344 -	released					
general	edit re	emove archive					Q
items	style #		Q	ty to add: 1			filter 👻
global fees	PLU	SO	ship-to location	qty	order cost	ext. discount amt	ext. cost
billing	2397		101 - Tampa Store	10	\$10.50	\$0.00	\$105.00
user info	K						,
		record	I4 4	page 1	of 1 🕨	10 25 50	
print	email P	O spread glo	bal fees histor	у –		re-releas	e cancel

This brings up the edit information screen for that item.

purchase ord	ler - 344 - PLU 2	397	
general fees foreign currency	qty: order cost: ext. discount amt: discount %: ext. cost: ext. cost: ext. fee amt: ext. cost incl. fee:	\$10.50 \$0.00 0.00 \$105.00 \$0.00	* custom PO Line:
	ship-to location: qty received: qty due: notes:		
	* - required		close

On this General tab, you're able to make changes to the order quantity, order cost, add a discount percentage, and more.

Move to the Fees tab to add fees to this specific item. As shown on the screen below, there are not currently any fees for this item. Select **New** to add a new fee.

purchase ord	er - 344 - PLU	2397					
general	new edit						
fees	fee code 🔺	fee description	qty	unit cost	ext. discount amt	ext. cost	gŀ
foreign currency							
	< 0 reco	rds					>
	- 100					_ clc	se

Required fields are marked with a red asterisk. Enter in the *Fee Code* using the drop-down selecting box.

purchase order	- 344 - PLU 23	97 - fee
fee code: fee description: global fee:		*
qty: unit cost: ext. discount amt:	\$0.00	* * disc. %: 0.00
ext. cost: * - required	\$0.00	*
		close

Enter in the *Fee Code* using the drop-down selection box.

Now fill in the rest of the required fields and remaining information.

purchase order - 344 - PLU 2397 - fee							
fee code:	A	*					
fee description:	AIRSHIP						
global fee:	BAG						
	EXP						
qty:	TIP						
unit cost:	S-SHIPPING						
ext. discount amt:	S-RESTOCK						

purchase order	- 344 - PLI	J 2397 - fee	
fee code:	S-SHIPPING		- ±
fee description:	Shipping		
global fee:			
qty:	1	*	
unit cost:	\$5.00	*	
ext. discount amt:	\$0.00	disc. 9	6: 0.00
ext. cost:	\$5.00		*
* - required			
			close

Some of the fields automatically update after entering information.

For example, after entering **\$5.00** in the *Unit Cost* field, this automatically updated the *Ext. Cost* field.

When finished, click **Close** to add the new fee to the order.

purchase order - 344 - PLU 2397								
general	new edit	remove						
fees	fee code 🔺	fee description	qty	unit cost	ext. discount amt	ext. cost	gl	
foreign	S-SHIPPING	Shipping	1	\$5.00	\$0.00	\$5.00		
currency								
	< 1 record	rde					>	
	1 Teco	143					_	
							close	

If there is any foreign currency on this order, then the Foreign Currency tab is enabled. Otherwise, click **Close** to close this style information and return to the PO.

Global Fees

If there are any global fees for this order, add them on this tab.

purchase orde	er - 344 - relea	ased				
general	new edit	remove fee description	qty	unit cost	ext. discount amt	ext. cost
items global fees			13			
billing						
user info						
	0 recor	ds				
print	email PO	spread global fees	history		re-rele	ase cancel

This fee dialog is the same layout as the fee dialog from the Fees tab, as described above.

purchase order -	- 344 - global fe	ee
fee code: fee description:		*
qty: unit cost: ext. discount amt:		* * disc. %: 0.00
ext. cost: * - required	\$0.00	*
		close

Billing

The Billing tab is for entering the vendor's billing information and payment terms, if desired.

purchase ord	ler - 344 - released			
general	pay-to vendor			
-	vendor:	Beauti Phull 👻		
items	payments		1	
global fees	terms code:	30 DAYS -		
billing	due date:	<mm dd="" yyyy=""></mm>		
user info	discount %:	0.00		
doci into	discount date:	<mm dd="" yyyy=""></mm>		
	method code:	.	_	
	foreign currency			
	currency code:	<none></none>		
	exchange rate:			
print	email PO spread g	lobal fees history	re-release	cance

User Info

Finally, the *User Info* tab is a purely information tab that shows information on the user that created this PO, as well as the date and time created, modified, and released.

purchase orc	ler - 344 - released					
general		: 07/12/2017 3:44 : ROOT ROOT	4 PM			
items		07/12/2017 3:48	8 PM			
global fees	released by last modified date	ROOT ROOT				
billing	last modified by		9 PINI			
user info						
print	email PO spread	global fees	history		re-release	cancel

At the bottom of any of these tabs are various buttons. **Print** is for printing a copy of the order, **Email PO** brings up a separate dialog for directly email the PO.

Spread Global Fees is used to quickly spread the global fee (if you created one on the Global Fees tab) across the entire PO.

print	email PO	spread global fees	history	re-release	cancel

The **History** button brings up a dialog that shows the history of the PO, including all actions.

urchase	order - 344 - history						
action	action date 👻	performed by	status	archived	qty ordered	total	5
release	07/12/2017 3:48 PM	ROOT ROOT	released		10	\$105.00	
hold	07/12/2017 3:44 PM	ROOT ROOT	held		10	\$105.00	
<						,	>
2 records							
						close	

When finished making changes and viewing any information, click **Re-Release** to release the update PO, or **Cancel** to close without saving.

print	email PO	spread global fees	history	re-release	cancel

New Fields

There is a new field in the Inventory area on the Style level. The field *Like Style No* is used to manually define a style number that this new style is similar to.

When defining an external location in CHQ, we've added a *VA Vendor* field to specific the vendor this external location is related to.

The vendor selected from this drop-down will be used to create POs to purchase from this external vendor location.

edit	external loc	ation			
	code: name: description:			*	
	va vendor: inactive:			•	
* - re	quired		save	cancel	

There is also a new VA Worksheet field on Purchase Orders and Transfer Orders. This field records/references the VA worksheet that created the order. This field only displays if there is a VA worksheet referenced.

purchase ord	der - 344 - released			
general	general		dates	
items global fees billing user info	universal order #: 1000 order #: 344 VA worksheet: 40 status: relea vendor ref. #: contract PO #: vendor	1		07/12/2017 #* 08/11/2017 #*
transfer orde	r - 128 - released			
general custom	universal order # order #	t: 128		
items		t: 40 s: release d e: 07/12/2017 12:44 PM	<u>₽-9</u> *	
	source location	100 - Clearwater Store 105 - New York Store		

Adjustment Memos

Version 5.0 – TFS # 46008

August 2017

We've added an Adjustment Memos functionality to CHQ, including the ability to add new, edit, delete, or post held adjustment memos, reverse posted adjustment memos, and print held or posted memos.

Adjustment Memos are used for used for making positive or negative adjustments on an item or items for a specified location.

For example, if an item is damaged, stolen, or given away for charity, you can make an adjustment to mark these items out. Or if an item is found, you can make a positive adjustment so your inventory remains accurate.

To access this feature, go to Inventory > Adjustment Memos.

styles & items	_				
styles & items	l≣ new list				Q
damage memos	Hew list				
stock count	recent			filter	
ransfer orders	132	WH - Warehouse posted	08/07/2017	universal #	
transfer memos	131	100 - Clearwater posted	08/07/2017	memo #	
visual allocation	a 130	100 - Clearwater posted	08/01/2017		Ŧ
adjustment memos	a 129	100 - Clearwater posted	08/01/2017		~
price memos	128	100 - Clearwater posted	08/01/2017		~
its	127	105 - New York S posted	08/01/2017		
oromo groups	o 126	103 - Miami Store posted	07/05/2017		
	125	100 - Clearwater posted	07/05/2017		
	a 124	100 - Clearwater posted	06/30/2017		Q
	o 123	105 - New York S posted	06/30/2017		
	122	100 - Cleanvater posted			
	121	103 - Miami Store posted	06/29/2017		
	o 120	100 - Clearwater posted	06/20/2017		

Here you can view the most recent memos, including those that are posted and those that are on hold (not yet posted).

At the top right of the screen, use the Search bar to find a specific memo that you don't see listed. Or use the Filter box below to narrow down the list results, if you're not exactly sure what you're looking for.



Click the **List** button to see a list view of the most recent memos.

Any memos that are on hold will display in Red. All other posted memos display in black.

From either this screen or the main screen, click **New** to create a new Adjustment Memo. These buttons are only enabled with the appropriate security rights (New Security Rights).

	-	move pri	nt			
merno #	universal #	status	location	memo date 🕶	items on memo	adjustment qty
135	0	posted	100 - Clearwater St	08/16/2017 1:55 PM	1	1
136	0	posted	202 - Lille Shop	08/16/2017 1:55 PM	1	-1
134	100000065	held	100 - Clearwater St	08/16/2017 12:36 PM	1	3
133	100000064	posted	105 - New York Store	08/15/2017 10:37 AM	1	5
131	0	posted	100 - Clearwater St	08/07/2017 4:26 PM	1	1
132	0	posted	WH - Warehouse	08/07/2017 4:26 PM	1	-1
130	100000063	posted	100 - Clearwater St	08/01/2017 12:22 PM	2	-8
129	100000062	posted	100 - Clearwater St	08/01/2017 12:14 PM	2	5
128	100000061	posted	100 - Clearwater St	08/01/2017 12:12 PM	2	-5
127	100000060	posted	105 - New York Store	08/01/2017 10:47 AM	4	8
First you'll need to set the location for this memo.

new adjustment memo					
location:		*			
*- required					
	ok	cancel			

After selecting a location, click **Ok**.

Until it is posted, Adjustment Memos have the status of *Held*, as displayed in the heading. The memo number, *134* in this case, is auto-generated by Teamwork in increasing numerical order with each additional memo that is created.

General Tab

The *General* tab is where you'll enter general memo information. Note that the *Universal* #, *Memo* #, *Status*, and *Memo Date* fields are unable to be edited; these are all auto-filled by CHQ.

Use the *Posting Date/Time* field to enter in a future date you want this memo to post. If no alternative date is entered, this field auto populates with the current date and time after finalizing.

adjustment n	nemo - 134 - helo	d				
general	general		custom			
0	universal #:	100000065	Adjustment R	eas		*
items	merno #:	134				
user info	status:	held				
	location:	100 - Clearwater Store 👻 \star				
		08/15/2017 1:54 PM				
	-	<auto empty="" finalize="" if="" on="" populated=""></auto>				
		adjustment oty 🗸 🗸				
	external ID:					
	totals					
	items on memo:	0				
	adjustment qty:					
	adjustment cost:	\$0.00				
	notes:					
	* - required					
print				hold	finalize	discard

Based On refers to the *Actual Quantity* or the *Adjustment Quantity*, depending on which you select.

This means the Adjustment Memo and totals are based on the selected quantity.

merno date:	08/15/2017 1:54 PM	
posting date/time:		
based on:	adjustment qty	Ŧ
external ID:	actual qty	
totals	adjustment qty	

The fields under the *Totals* header automatically update after you've added items in the *Items* tab. Use the *Notes* field to manually enter any additional notes relating to this adjustment.

totals						
items on memo:	0					
adjustment qty:	0					
adjustment cost:	\$0.00					
otes:						
eenagers returned	three stolen t-shi	ts vesterday that	were previou	sly marked o	ut as missing.	
eenagers returned	l three stolen t-shi	ts yesterday that	were previou	sly marked o	ut as missing.	
feenagers returned	l three stolen t-shi	ts yesterday that	were previou	sly marked o	ut as missing.	
Feenagers returned	l three stolen t-shi	ts yesterday that	were previou	sly marked o	ut as missing.	
* - required	l three stolen t-shi	ts yesterday that	were previou	isly marked o	ut as missing.	
	l three stolen t-shi	ts yesterday that	were previou	isly marked o	ut as missing.	

The *Custom* heading can be customized to have any field needed. In this case, a custom field was set up to offer *Adjustment Reasons*.

Employees can quickly select an adjustment reason, instead of manually typing one it. This helps keep responses uniform and consistent for reports and other information management.

custom		
Adjustment Reas	 Charity	*
	Damaged	
	Lost	
	Stolen	

From this screen you can put the memo on **Hold** to work on at a later time, or **Finalize** or **Discard** it. However, typically you would add items on the *Items* tab before finalizing.



If the location setting "Warn when receiving at zero cost" is set to TRUE, the following dialog displays after selecting **Finalize**.

Items Tab

The *Items* tab is where you'll add items that need to be adjusted.

If you have an Excel sheet of adjustments to import, click the **Import** button.

adjustment m	iemo - 1	34 - held					
general		remove import r	efresh recorded				Q
items	style #	search to add	Q				
user info	PLU	recorded qty	actual qty	adjustment qty	adjustment unit cost	adjustment ext.	. cost
		0 records		page 1 of	1	25 50	
		U records	- III	page 1 of	T P P 10	25 50	
print					hold	finalize	discard

Click the blue box with three dots to choose the spreadsheet from your computer. Or click **Download Template** to download a blank template to start working on.

import adjustment memo lines		
excel spreadsheet for import file path download template		
	ok	cancel

With a template uploaded, click **Ok** to complete the import.

Use the search field at the top right of the screen to do a general (all info) search.

adjustment m	nemo - 13						
general		move import			search		ρ
items	style #		Q				
user info	PLU	recorded qty	actual qty	adjustment qty	adjustment unit cost	adjustment ext. cost	

Alternatively, use the *Search to Add* field to look up specific items.

Here the field is set to *Style #*, but this can be changed to search by *PLU* or in include *All Info*.

adjustment memo - 134 - held							
general	edit remove import refresh recorded						
items	style # 📼	search to add	Q				
under info	style #	recorded atu	a shual shu				
user info	PLU	recorded qty	actual qty				
	all info						

all info	t-shirt	0	
PLU	recorded qty	actual qty	a

Type the item you're looking for into the search field and either click the Search icon or hit the **Enter** key on the keyboard.

If there are search results for that item, these come up in a new screen.

				all info	t-shirt	Q (8)
PLU 🔺	style #	dcss	store	attribute 1	attribute 2	
331	13	Mens - Shirts - A	Lululemon Metal Tech T-Shirt	Size L		
332	13	Mens - Shirts - A	Lululemon Metal Tech T-Shirt	Size S		
333	13	Mens - Shirts - A	Lululemon Metal Tech T-Shirt	Size M		
334	13	Mens - Shirts - A	Lululemon Metal Tech T-Shirt	Size XL		
335	13	Mens - Shirts - A	Lululemon Metal Tech T-Shirt	Size XXL		
1483	69	Mens - Shirts - A	Americana Pocket T-Shirt	L		
1484	69	Mens - Shirts - A	Americana Pocket T-Shirt	м		
1485	69	Mens - Shirts - A	Americana Pocket T-Shirt	S		
1486	69	Mens - Shirts - A	Americana Pocket T-Shirt	XL		
6717	ABC	Womens - Shirt	ABC sports t-shirt	Red	35	
31 records			a page 1 of 4	▶ 10	25 50	

Select the item you want to adjust and click **Ok**. Or, if this is the wrong item, either select **Cancel** or type something different into the search field and run the search again.

Selecting an item automatically adds it to the main screen. Next you'll need to enter the adjustment quantity for the item. Add as many items as needed by following the above steps.

adjustment memo - 134 - held								
general	edit remove import refresh recorded						8	0
items	all info		2					
user info	PLU	recorded qty	actual qty	adjustment qty	adjustment unit	cost ad	justment ext. cost	
	4787	0	3	8	\$1	4.00	\$42.00	
			C					

You can also change the *Adjustment Unit Cost* if needed. Any changes to these two columns automatically updates the *Adjustment Ext. Cost* column.

Once an item is successfully added to the memo, the *Edit*, *Remove*, and *Refresh Recorded* buttons enable.

If you need to make advanced changes to the item's information, select the correct item from the list and then click **Edit**.

adjustment memo - 134 - held										
edit r	emove	import	refresh recorde	d						
all info		irch to add	Q							
PLU	recorded qt		actual qty 🔺							
4787		0	3							
	edit r all info PLU	edit remove all info sea PLU re	edit remove import all info search to add PLU recorded qty	edit remove import refresh recorder all info search to add O PLU recorded qty actual qty *						

Here you can edit the same fields as on the main screen (such as *Adjustment Qty* and *Adjustment Ext. Cost*), but you can also make changes in any custom fields that are set up.

em - 4787			
recorded qty:	0	custom	
actual qty:	3	custom text 1:	
adjustment qty:	3	custom text 2:	Ŷ
adjustment unit cost:	\$14.00	custorn date 1:	Ê
adjustment ext. cost:	\$42.00	custorn date 2:	Ê
dajasanen: ext. cost.	342.00	custom number 1:	
		custom number 2:	
		custom decimal 1:	~
otes:		curtom docimal 3:	

When finished making changes, click **Save** to update the item.

The **Refresh Recorded** button is used to refresh and recheck the inventory quantities. For example, if some items are purchased in-store while you are creating the memo.

adjustment memo - 134 - held									
general	edit re	move in	port	refresh recorde	ed				
items	all info		to add	Q					
user info	PLU	J recorded qty		actual qty 🔺					
	4787			3					

Selecting this button brings up a confirmation dialog. To continue, select **Yes**, or click **No** to cancel and return to the main screen.

refresh recorded quantities	
Do you want to update recorded quantities in the snapshot? This action may take a few minutes.	
yes no	

From the main screen you can put the memo on **Hold** to work on at a later time, **Finalize** or **Discard** the memo, or **Print** it. Or move to the next tab to view the user info for this memo.

general	edit re	move import	refresh recorded	1	t-shi	irt 🤇	9,0
tems	all info	search to	Q				
user info	PLU	recorded qty	actual qty 🔺	adjustment qty	adjustment unit cost	adjustment ext. cost	
	4787	0	3	3	\$14.00	\$42.00	

User Info Tab

Almost everything on this tab is for information purposes only, and is unable to be edited.

adjustment m	nemo - 134 - hel	d
general items	created by:	08/15/2017 1:59 PM ROOT ROOT 08/16/2017 4:36 AM
user info	last modified by:	ROOT ROOT
	posting date/time: posted by:	<auto empty="" finalize="" if="" on="" populated="">)</auto>
print		hold finalize discard

You can update the *Posting Date/Time* field, which can also be changed on the *General* tab.

New Security Rights

ADJMEMO-ACCESS	Adjustment memos – Access new right	Basic access to adjustment memos.
ADJMEMO-ADD	Adjustment memos – Add new right	Add new, edit held, delete held, finalize adjustment memo.
ADJMEMO-REVERSE	Adjustment memos – Reverse new right	Reverse posted adjustment memo

New Security Setting

Adjustment Memo Report

• Settings > Printing > CHQ Printing Designs > Adjustment Memos

Confirmation Message on Adjustment Memo Finalization

Version 5.0 – TFS # 52334

August 2017

After finalizing a Held Adjustment Memo, a confirmation dialog now displays. Two different messages display, depending on the security settings enabled.

First go to Adjustment Memo > List > select a held memo > View/Edit > General Tab

If the *Based On* field is set to *Adjustment Qty* or *Actual Qty*, and there are some items with a unit cost of zero, the following dialog displays.



Click **Continue** to finalize the memo with zero cost items, or **Cancel** to return to the memo and update item costs.

In all other cases, the standard confirmation dialog displays.

Created Adjustment Memos Display in Recent Area

Version 5.11 – TWD-3072

August 2017

Under Inventory > Adjustment Memos, all recently created Adjustment Memos displays in the Recent area.

Filtering Styles/Items by eCommerce Type

Version 5.0 – TFS # 53271

August 2017

We've updated the CHQ API to include the ability to filter styles/items by eCommerce type (for example, ec-offer, ec-discontinued, ec-suspended, etc.)

Add Ship From Vendor Field on Item Level

Version 5.0 – TFS # 53231

August 2017

We've added a *Ship From Vendor* field on the item level. This field can be found under Inventory > Styles & Items. You can also search for or filter out the *Ship From Vendor* field.

Price Level – Prevent Changing Price Level Code

Version 5.0 - TFS # 53845

August 2017

When opening a Price Level for editing, the Price Level Code is unable to be edited. Users are unable to change the code once a price level is saved.

Add Discontinued Flag on Item Level

Version 5.0 – TFS # 53230

August 2017

We've added a *Discontinued* flag on the item level. This applies to marking items as discontinued in Inventory, preventing importing discontinued items, and filtering out or searching for discontinued items.

When the flag is enabled, this also prevents creating a PO for discontinued items.

NOTE

The *Discontinued* flag means that an item is marked as discontinued, so the remaining items can be sold in store, but associates are unable to create a Purchase Order to order more.

The *Inactive* flag means the item is completely inactive, unable to be sold, purchased, transferred, etc.

Custom Multi-Select Fields

Version 5.1 – TWD-2634

August 2017

We've added 12 custom multi-select fields at the Style level. These are similar to custom lookups, but allow the ability to select multiple values.

The enable these multi-select fields, go to Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Custom Fields > Style.

TEAMWORKICHQ		inventory	purchasing	sales	analytics	services	settings			
search	⊖ cust	om fields - s	tyle							Q
security	e	edit	lookup values							
 company settings 		custom field 4		label		visible	list order			
 location settings 		от юокир 7						U		
 inventory / catalog 		om lookup 8						0		
styles & items designer		om lookup 9						0		
preset item options		om lookup 10						0		
	custo	om lookup 11						0		
brands	custo	om lookup 12						0		
seasons	custo	om multiselect	l i					0		
 department classifications 	custo	om multiselect 2	2					0		
 alternate classifications 	custo	om multiselect :	3					0		
attributes	custo	om multiselect 4	1					0		
price levels	custo	om multiselect !	i					0		
inventory settings	custo	om multiselect (5					0		
inventory labels	custo	om multiselect :	1					0		
POS catalog categories	custo	om multiselect 8	3					0		
inventory import	custo	om multiselect §)					0		
✓ custom fields	custo	om multiselect	0					0		
style	custo	om multiselect i	11					0		
item	custo	om multiselect	12					0		
mk 🕖								🕜 Eng	glish (US) 👻 🚺	version 5.0.365.0

single item							
gaparal	item type:	single item			product ids		
general	style no:	1020			plu:	38070	
custom 22	dcss code:	jeans2ACCCCMbooks	~	*	alternate id:		
custom 24	season:		~		primary upc:	<none></none>	-
	manufacturer:	Asics	Ψ.	*	upcs:		
ltem custom fields	tax category:	Basic Retail Tax Group	~	*			
licius	store description:	aaa		*		add delete	
pricing	description 3:				external ID:		
vendors	Base Price:	\$0.00		-	get weight from scale:		_
	brand:		-		style custom multiselect 1:	abcdd, cdd, newyea	edit
categories	auto-prompt to pay wi				style custom multiselect 2:		
custom part 2	description 2:				style custom multiselect 3:		edit
channels	delivery order eligible:			C	discontinued:		
charmers	date 2:		U U		Cdec1:		
custom	Black Friday Price:	\$0.00			Cf4:		
natalie	description 1:				Cfl6:		
	sale:	\$0.00			Cf 5:		
custom 25	date available:		U U		CI DI		

When enabled, the fields look similar to the screen shown below.

Selecting **Edit** brings up a similar screen as shown here.

select custom multiselect 1			
select all unselect all			,O filter 🔺
custom multiselect 1+	selected	selected	
н		 (select all) 	
e		✓ selected	
ZZZZZ		✓ unselected	
Ulia Vendor			
Trade-In	\checkmark		
toy			
test ivan	\checkmark		
DRON12 - nord			
ERT			
FO - to			
2 of 34 records selected	page 1	of 4 🕨 🔰 1	0 25 50
		sele	ct cancel

Inventory Catalog Fields

Version 5.10 - TWD-2696

August 2017

The feature is for the Digital Asset, Product URL, and Country fields.

Digital Asset and Product URL fields are used for selling digital assets, such as e-books, webinars, etc.

When a Sales Receipt has an item marked as a "digital asset," an email goes to the customer with information from the "product URL" fields. This allows the customer to download the digital product.

When a Sales Order with a product marked as a "digital asset," is accepted into OMS, this item is automatically marked as shipped and an email goes to the customer.

A Digital Asset flag and Product URL field, have been added to the following areas:

- On the Item level
- To the list of fields in Styles & Items designer (CHQ > Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer) to the General Single Item and General Service Item tabs.
- In the Edit Style & Item dialog in the Styles & Items Designer.
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Open style/model dialog for style that contains more than 1 item > Items Tab.
- Imported items can be marked as a digital asset (Inventory > Styles & Items > Import).
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Imports > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import dialog > Items tab > Edit > Inventory Item > General tab > Control & Usage section.
- Inventory Export report
- Inventory Catalog import and export APIs

A Country field has been added to the following areas (where country represents country of origin, where the item was produced)

- On the Style Level
- To the list of fields in Styles & Items designer (CHQ > Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer) to the General Style/Model, General Single Item, General Service Item, and all Custom tabs.
- In the Edit Style/Item dialog in the Styles & Items designer. When a user starts typing a country, a drop-down displays matching names from the Countries table.
- Imported items can be marked as a digital asset (Inventory > Styles & Items > Import).

- An uneditable Country Code field is added to the Import Items list view (Inventory > Styles & Items > Imports > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items tab).
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Imports > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items tab > Edit > Inventory Item > General tab > Country Code field displays.
- Inventory Export report
- Inventory Catalog import and export APIs

Inventory Catalog – Extend Number of Style Custom Fields

Version 5.10 - TWD-2697

August 2017

There are now 12 Style custom fields for:

- Custom Dates (Style Custom Date 7–12)
- Custom Decimals (Style Custom Decimal 7–12)
- Custom Numbers (Style Custom Number 7–12)
- Custom Text (Style Custom Text 7–12)

There are now 18 Style custom fields for:

- Custom Flags (Style Custom Flag 7–18)
- Custom Long Texts (Style Custom Text 11–18)

New Settings

Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Custom Fields > Style.

New Fields

The following fields have been added to the Styles & Items Designer (Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer), the Styles & Items Import, and the Export and Import Inventory Catalog APIs.

- General style/model
- General single item
- General service item
- Custom
- All custom (created by user) tabs

These fields are only visible when enabled in settings.

Style Details Report

Version 5.12 - TWD-5859

August 2017

There is a new Product Flash button in the Styles & Items area to quickly run a report by Style Details.

new	edit	check qty	digita	il assets prod	luct flash		
style # 🔺	DCSS		ACSS	brand	manufacturer	store description	description 1
0-0	ACCHATBEA				10 GRAIN	333	
01	ACCHATBBF				Costco	service	
01717	1112223334				10 GRAIN	khg	
1	ACCHOSCRE			Children Clot	GinaGroup	RW 6 PK CREW	RWF12B22197
100	ACCKNIMTE			Games	Rocawear	S/S BLACK FLAG TSHIRT	R0012T801
10000	ACCHATBOM				2 BIG KIDS	kids	kidskidskids
10000001	ACCBAGSHO				11	360 Blair hoodie open ca	360blai
10000002	ACCBAGSHO				11	360 Blair hoodie open ca	360blai
1001	ACCBAGBACL				11	fgf	

Selecting **Product Flash** opens a report for the style of the selected item, which runs the same as other reports.

There is also a Product Flash button at the bottom of a Style/Model dialogs.

1	item type:	style/model			serial number tracking:	non	e		-
general	style #:	1000			eligible for LRP 1:	\checkmark	ratio:	1	
tems	DCSS:	ACCHOSQTR	T	*	eligible for LRP 2:				
custom	ACSS:		•		Available in Calendar:				
	season:		•		delivery order eligible:				
oricing	manufacturer:	AFM	Ŧ	*	require item availability:				
vendors	tax category:	Basic Retail Tax Group	•	*	custom long text 18:	add			
custom 1	store description:	sale		*	require discount auth				
	description 1:	retail			auto-prompt to pay wi				
hannels	brand:		•		MULTISELECT1:				edit
ategories	attributes				multiselect 2:				edit
	attribute 1:	SECOND	V		multiselect 3:				edit
common fields	attribute 2:		∇		multiselect 4:				edit
Katya - don't	attribute 3:				multiselect 5:				edit
ouch	control & usage				multiselect 6:				edit
Anya's test	-				multiselect 9:				edit
nodel stock	replenishment:				multiselect7:				edit
nodel stock					multiselect 8:				edit
					MULTISELECT12:				edit
					like style #:				
	* - required				style custom multisele				edit

New Settings

Under Settings > Printing > Web Printing Designs, there is a new Styles & Items section with a *Product Flash Report* field.

TE AMY OF KICHQ	inventory purchasing sale	s analytics services s	settings
search $ ho$	web printing designs		
 security 	damage memos		
security settings	damage memo report:	TWR-0315	select
users	adjustment memos		
roles user custom fields	adjustment memo report:	TWR-0377	Select
 company settings 	stock count		
 location settings 	zone count discrepancies report:	TWR-0320	🛞 select
inventory / catalog	stock count worksheet report: zone count shelf tag report:	TWR-0321 TWR-0322	select
• customer		TWR-0322	select
sales	order management		
order management	sales order report:	TWR-0401	Select
drawer management	pick list report:	OMG-0002	Select
purchasing	pack list report:	TWR-0343	🛞 select
transfers	pack slip report:	BD-0009	select
 printing 	pick up label report: styles & items	TWR-0359	elect
	product flash report:	TWD-0402	Select

Allow Blank Labels for Fields in Styles & Items

Version 5.11 - TWD-2829

August 2017

We've made changes to the names of fields for a Style/Item/Service Item that is used as a label defining each field for tabs in the Styles & Items Designer. These label fields are required but we've updated them so they can be defined in different languages.

Changes are made to the flowing areas:

- In Styles & Items Designer:
 - Default name of the field is localized to be translated to different languages.
 - Label is not required for fields in the Styles & Items Designer.
 - Labels are blank by default
- In Style/Item/Service Item dialog:
 - If a label is not defined for the field, the default name of the field displays.
 - This allows the field name in the Item dialog to support multiple languages.

Min/Max Import

Version 5.12 - TWD-4221

August 2017

This feature adds the capability to import Min/Max values. Min/Max values are used in Allocation Worksheet, Purchase Worksheet, and Replenishment Worksheet reports.

When enabled, an Import Min/Max button displays under Inventory > Styles & Items. This works similar to other import areas.

	inventory purchasing sales analytics services setti	ings
styles & items	B ≣ ↓ ↓ Search	0
stock count	new list imports import min/max	,
transfer orders	recent filter	
transfer memos	87026 KIO CS1620BEALL style #	
adjustment memos	1166 HAY BITS & BOBS LG PLU, CLU, UPC	
price memos	2 1200 NC BOX PLAYFUL BLOSS descriptions	
kits	92966 VIVIAN MAIER STREET DCSS code	-
promo groups	87047 KIO CS22X28VEGETABUL department	-

Selecting **Import Min/Max** brings up the following *Min/Max Imports* dialog. Here you can create new imports and view recent ones.

new	view	archive	2				filter
no 🔺	status	progress	description	model stock group	created date	archived	
	error			Large store	03/24/2017 8:15 AM		
	error			Small store	03/24/2017 8:15 AM		
	error			Medium store	03/24/2017 8:15 AM		
	error			Small store	03/24/2017 8:31 AM		
	error			Medium store	03/24/2017 8:31 AM		
	error			Small store	03/24/2017 8:31 AM		
	error			Medium store	03/24/2017 8:50 AM		
	imported			Small store	03/24/2017 9:16 AM		
	imported			Medium store	03/27/2017 8:37 AM		
)	imported			Small store	03/27/2017 9:05 AM		

Clicking **New** brings up a dialog for creating a new import. Select the blue box to the right of *File Name* to choose the import from your computer.

new min/max import	
excel spreadsheet for import	\square
file name:	download template
locations	
model stock group:	*
import process	
import description:	
import by: do not import, review only:	PLU 👻
	ok cancel

Use the *Model Stock Group* drop-down to select the name of the model stock group for this import. After clicking **Ok** and running the import, this brings up a *Ready to Import* dialog.

min/max im	port #2 - ready to impo	rt
general	import #:	
errors	status:	ready to import
errors	created date:	03/24/2017 8:15 AM
	created by:	AUTOMAT
	import started date:	
	imported date:	
	imported by:	
	archived:	
	model stock group:	Small store 👻
	file:	download file
	import by:	PLU
	# of lines:	125
		Week 1-4 - min, Week 1-4 - max, Week 5-6 - min, Week 5-6 - max, Week 7-10 - min, Week 7-10 - max
	description:	
		hold import discard

If there are any errors or warnings after running the import, these display in the *Errors* tab.

min/max imp	oort #2 - erro	r						
general	review erro	ors ('1') and warnings ('0'):						
errors	severity 🔺	text				descriptio	n	
· • • • •	error	column "upc" does not exist						
	1 reco	rds	page 1	of 1		10 25	5 50	
					hold			discard

New Security Right

Area	Right	Name	Description
Inventory		Min/Max Imports – Access	Allows user to access Min/Max imports list and view imports
Inventory	Inventory		Allows user to create, edit, and delete a Min/Max Import

Inventory – Backorder Field

Version 5.11 - TWD-3682

August 2017

We've added a new Backorder field that is used to mark items as eligible or ineligible for backorder. This field is used for eCommerce integrations.

This field is added to the following places:

- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer to the following tabs:
 - General Single Item
 - General Service Item
- Styles & Items > Edit Style/Item dialog
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Open style/model dialog for a style that contains more than one item > Items tab > Control & Usage section.
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import (can import backorder field)
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Imports > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items Tab > Edit > Inventory Item > General Tab > Control & Usage section.
- Inventory Export report.
- Inventory Catalog import and export APIs

Item Replenishment Fields

Version 5.12 - TWD-4393

August 2017

This feature provides a filter for all items with a set volume (of sales) for the purposes of working with a segment of inventory.

This feature is used to quickly set min/max values on items, for example, if you know a size 6.5 or a size 13 shoe are going to be Low (Min 1, Max 2), or Very Low (Min 0, Max 1).

There is a new *Volume* field added to the Item record with the following available values:

- None
- Very Low
- Low
- Medium
- High
- Very High

ttribute	new edit		(
alues	value	order 🔺	qty/weight	volume	alias 1	alias 2	
	X-Small	1	1.0)	low			
	Small	2	1.00	medium			
	Medium	3	1.0 <mark>0</mark>	high			
	Large	4	1.0 <mark>0</mark>	very high			
	X-Large	5	1.0 <mark>0</mark>	high			
	One Size	6	1.00				
	11 x 8.5	106	0.00				
	20 x 12	206	0.00				
	20 x 16	306	0.00				
	30 x 18	406	0.00				
	30 x 24	506	0.00				
	40 x 24	606	0.00				
	30 x 26	706	0.00				
	40 x 28	806	0.00				
	30 x 30	906	0.00				
	20 x 31	1006	0.00				

When setting the Values on a specific item, a *Volume* column now displays.

A *Volume* field also displays when creating a new size or editing an existing one, as shown below.

X-Sma	a		
quan	value: order: tity/weight:	X-Small 1	*
	volume:	low	•
* - requ	alias 2: Jired		
		save	cancel

Additionally, you can run reports to see if the Volume is set correctly for the items. This is convenient for managing a broad range of inventory in the fastest way possible.

New Fields

A Volume field is added to the following areas:

- On the Item level
- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer > General Single Item & General Service Item tabs
- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer > Edit Style/Item dialog
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items tab
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items tab > Edit > Inventory Item > General tab
- Inventory Export report
- Inventory Catalog import

A Weeks of Supply field is added to the following areas:

- Purchasing > Vendors > New or Edit > Purchasing tab
- Vendor Import and Export
- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer > General Single Item & General Service Item tabs
- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer > Edit Style/Item dialog > Vendors tab

CHICCO				
general	pure	chasing		
shipping			DHL	•
purchasing	ſ	weeks of supply:	2	
people	U	minimum purchase:	\$0.00	
notes		payment term: payment method:	DUE	* *
custom				

- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items tab
- Inventory > Styles & Items > Import > Edit > Inventory Catalog Import Dialog > Items tab > Edit > Inventory Item > General tab
- Inventory Export
- Inventory Catalog Import and Export

A *Lead Time* field is added to the following areas:

- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Styles & Items Designer > General Single Item & General Service Item tabs
- Inventory Export
- Inventory Catalog Import and Export

Tax Group Setting Added to Inventory Export API

Version 5.11 – TWD-3940

August 2017

We've added a TaxGroupSetting to the Inventory Export API. Possible value are Code or EID.

Quick Transfers

Version 5.11 - TWD-3725

August 2017

This feature adds the capability to create and post a Transfer Memo from the Transfer Order dialog in CHQ.

There is a new Quick Transfer button on Transfer Orders (both Held and Released orders). This quickly creates an Out or In Memo in the background and transfers exactly what is on the TO.

transfer orde	r - 706 - held	
general	universal order #: order #:	
custom	reference #:	
items	status:	
	order date:	04/07/2017 12:27 PM
		LERA - Valeriia Yagya 💌 *
	default target location:	LERAY - Valeriia 💌 \star
	created date:	04/07/2017 12:27 PM
	created by:	ROOT ROOT
	released date:	
	released by:	
	released by.	
	last updated date:	04/07/2017 12:33 PM
	last updated by:	ROOT ROOT
	notes:	
	*	
C	* - required	
	quick transfer	hold release discard

Selecting **Quick Transfer** brings up a confirmation dialog.

Click **OK** to release the Transfer Order or **Cancel** to close the dialog without processing.

quick transfer		
Do you want to release the transfer order, or and post out/in the transfer memo(s)?	create trans	sfer memo(s)
	ok	cancel

Under Transfer Memos > Filter, there is a new *Transfer Order #* field.

	inventory purchasing sale	es ar	alytics services setting	<u>ş</u> s
tyles & items amage memos	記 list in transit posted			Q
tock count	recent		filter	
ransfer orders	→ 10466000209 02/17/2017 UVAREIKO to OLGAN	2/2	universal memo #	
ransfer memos	→ 1000000028 03/21/2017 OLGAN to UVAREIKO	2/2	memo #	
isual allocation	\$ 10260000194 12/26/2016 UVAREIKO to ACTIVE	0/1		*
djustment memos	10738000151 03/21/2017 OLGAN to UVAREIKO	0/4		Ŧ
rice memos	→ 10517000125 03/21/2017 OLGAN to UVAREIKO	1/1	target location	-
its	→ 10517000126 03/21/2017 OLGAN to UVAREIKO	1/1	transfer order #	
omo groups	→ 10517000127 03/21/2017 OLGAN to UVAREIKO	7/7	universal order #	
	→ 10737000101 03/21/2017 UVAREIKO to LERA	1/1		
	0 3/21/2017 UVAREIKO to VIKTOR	0/1		
	03/21/2017 UVAREIKO to VIKTOR	0/1		v
	03/21/2017 UVAREIKO to OLGAN	0/1		Ŧ
				Q
nk 有			_	English (US)

New Security Right

Area	Right	Description
Transfer Memos	Transfer Memos – Add/Edit	Add new, edit, post out/in Transfer Memos.

SVS Support

LRP 1 & 2 Flags and Ratio on Item

Version 5.0 - TFS # 45428

August 2017

In previous versions we had an *Eligible for LRP* flag for an item which is used only for LRP1. We've now added an additional flag, so one is delegated for LRP1 and the other is LRP2, with a defined ratio for each program.

SVS Location Groups

Version 5.0 - TFS # 45992

August 2017

Some companies have stores in different countries, but use one server. These stores go by different SVS namespaces. To accommodate this, there is a new area in CHQ called SVS Location Groups to allow for stores with different SVS namespaces with assigned locations.

Customer Search – Adding Contact Fields

Version 5.10 - TWD-2657

August 2017

There's a new *Include Contact Information in Customer Search* flag in CHQ > Settings > Company Settings > General SVS Settings.

		inventory purchasing sale	es analytics services settings
search	Q	general SVS settings	
▶ security	^	service URL:	https://cloudwksvs.appspot.com/ *
 company settings 		access token:	value is defined 😵 *
company information			enter registration token
stored values services		namespace:	qa04
general SVS settings		settings configuration mode:	
SVS location groups		CRM URL:	
gift card settings		send sales receipts to CRM:	
store credit settings	ſ	offline posting of sales receipt to CRM preferred:	
LRP settings		include contact information in customer search:	
LRP promotions			

This flag also displays in CRM.

CRM Teamwork *: 4510_test	Customers Values Import Marke	eting Campaigns Settings
MENU	H Save C Refresh	
General Settings	General	
Devices	Settings Configuration Mode	CRM
Mailing Settings	Default Country	Key "" not found.
Transactional Emails		
Customer Settings	Phone Number	
LRP 1	Phone Number Format	No validation 👻
LRP 2	Phone Number Default Country	Key "US" not found.
LRP 1 Promotions	Customer Search	
LRP 2 Promotions	include contact information in customer search	Yes
Gift Cards		

Share Customers Among all SVS Namespaces used by Company

Version 5.10 - TWD-2669

August 2017

Customer are now shared among all SVS namespaces used by the company (on the server), but NOT Demo and Production servers.

Analytics

Data Mine Functionality

Version 5.11-TWD-3679

August 2017

As Data Mine functionality was migrated from Silverlight CHQ 4.x to CHQ 5.x, we've made some minor improvements.

For more information on creating a data mine, read the Version 5.0 CHQ Analytics manual.

TEAMWORKICHQ		inventory	purchasing	sales	analytics	services	settings
search	¢	report settings					
▹ security		general settings					
 company settings 		report server URL	http://127.0.0.1	/reportser\	/er2		
 location settings 		user name	rptuser				
 inventory / catalog 		password	*******				
▶ customer		report folder					
In sales		data source folder	: /CHQ/Data Sou	irces			
 order management 		analytics					
 drawer management 	1	allow to email reports	. 🗸				
▶ purchasing	1	data mines					
 transfers 		connection string	\ZEUS;Catalog=		urce=TW-CHQ-D Connect Timeout		
 printing 			Timeout=0;				
✓ reports							
report settings							
 eCommerce 							
 scheduler 							

Security Rights

Area	Right	Notes
Data Mines	Access Data Mines	Allows user to access data mines sub-area, create personal data mines, run personal and team data mines.
Data Mines	Team Data Mines Administration	Allows user to create team data mines, doesn't allow to change team data mine to personal data mine if data mine owner is a different person
Data Mines	Super Data Mines Administration	Allows user to access, run, and edit personal data mines of other users and can change team data mine to personal data mine if data mine owner is a different person.

Added Localization in Data Mines

Version 5.11 – TWD-2832

August 2017

We've added localization for Dimensions, Values and Filters in Data Mines. This allows our International Partners to translate these various values in Data Mines.

Stock Ledger

Teamwork has created our own Stock Ledger where we "log" every transaction that occurs for a client. In the past, we have used NAV Stock Ledger.

By January 2017, we'll start installing ONLY the new ledger and clients will be upgraded to the new ledger.

NOTE

The OLD Stock Ledger reports have a TWR code at the beginning (ex. TWR-00001).

All NEW Stock Ledger reports will have just a TW code (ex. TW-00001)

Cost on Positive Adjustments in CHQ Stock Ledger

Version 5.0 – TFS # 52331

August 2017

When a positive adjustment with an item cost more than \$0 (from an Adjustment Memo) is posted to CHQ Stock Ledger, this does not recalculate the cost. Instead, the adjustment is posted to in the ledger with the new cost from the adjustment memo.

When a positive adjustment with an item cost equal to \$0 (from an Adjustment Memo, Stock Count, etc.) is posted to CHQ Stock Ledger, the cost gets recalculated during the posting (as currently happens).

Settings

Settings – Order Field in Printing for Mobile

Version 5.10 - TWD-2841

August 2017

We've added a new Order field to the Printing area for Mobile. Changes can be found in these areas:

- In the Printing Design dialog on the Printing Areas tab, there is now an Order column. This column is visible by default.
- There is an Order field in the Edit Printing Area dialog. This field is zero by default and negative numbers are allowed.

These changes can be found in Settings > Mobile Printing Designs.

Settings – Added External ID to UI for Location

Version 5.11 - TWD-3118

August 2017

We've added a field to define the External ID for locations to the following areas:

- Settings > Locations > Locations list > External ID column. By default this is not visible.
- Location dialog > Name field > External ID field. The maximum length for this field is 128 characters.

Settings – Hide Costing Method Field from Preset Item Options

Version 5.11 - TWD-3095

August 2017

In Settings under Preset Item Options, we've hidden the *Costing Method* field, as it is not used.

This means the *Costing Method* column is hidden from the grid and the Preset Item Option dialog.

For all new and existing Preset Item options, the *Costing Method* is set to FIFO.

Settings for Attribute Labels Added

Version 5.11 – TWD-3405

August 2017

We've added new settings for attribute labels under CHQ > Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Inventory Labels.

This includes a new Attributes section (listed underneath Alternate Classification Names) with the following settings:

- "Attribute 1" (default is "Attribute 1")
- "Attribute 2" (default is "Attribute 2")
- "Attribute 3" (default is "Attribute 3")

These are similar to other inventory label settings in that they are all text fields with a maximum of 120 characters allowed.

Changes to the Inventory Label Settings are as follows:

- The "Department/Class" setting is now "DCSS" which is also the default setting.
- The "Asset/Memo" setting is now hidden.

Settings – "Allow Negative" Flag for Store Credit Payment

Version 5.11-TWD-3664

August 2017

Currently the Store Credit payment option in iPad POS Store Credit supports the "Allow Negative" setting, and this is now present in CHQ as well.

In CHQ Settings > Payment Methods for Store Credit payment method, we've added the following setting:

- In the grid of the Location Settings dialog, an *Allow Negative* column displays with a checkbox. This is placed before the *List Order* and is visible by default.
- An *Allow Negative* checkbox also displays in the Edit Location Settings dialog. This is placed before the *List Order* and is visible by default but NOT checked.

Settings – Membership Level Custom Fields

Version 5.12 - TWD-4498

August 2017

We've added settings to configure custom fields for Membership Levels, including new Custom Fields to the Membership Level dialog.

Go to Settings > Sales > Custom fields to view the *Membership Level* area, which includes the six new custom fields.

TEPMINOLIK ICHQ		inventory	purc	chasing	sales	analyti	ics services	settings	
search	۲	custom fields - r	nembe	ership lev	el				Q
fees membership levels	^	edit	lookup	values					
commission groups		custom field 🔺		label			visible	list order	
open return required fields		custom text 1						0	
 custom fields 		custom text 2						1	
payment lines		custom text 3						2	
sales order header		custom text 4						3	
sales order lines		custom text 5						4	
sales receipt header		custom text 6						5	
sales receipt lines									
membership level									
 order management 									

When enabled, these custom fields can be visible on the Settings > Membership Levels > New Membership Level dialog.

general		
level:		*
label:		*
description:		*
day length when sold:	1	*
price:	\$0.00	
discount:	from price	V.
discount %:	0.00	
membership item:		selec
inactive:		
custom		
custom text 1:		
custom text 2:		
custom text 3:		
custom text 4:		

Settings – Format Value in DCSS and ACSS Fields

Version 5.11 – TWD-2897

August 2017

There are two new settings added to Settings > Inventory Settings.

- DCSS (replaces DCSS Code/Name)
 - The selector has three values:
 - DCSS code (the default)
 - Dept Code > Class Code > Subclass 1 Code > Subclass 2 Code
 - Dept Name > Class Name > Subclass 1 Name > Subclass 2 Name
- ACSS (replaces ACSS Code/Name)
 - The selector has three values:
 - ACSS code (the default)
 - Alt Dept Code > Class Code > Subclass 1 Code > Subclass 2 Code
 - Alt Dept Name > Class Name > Subclass 1 Name > Subclass 2 Name

These settings are applied to the following areas

- Styles & Items Designer
- Styles & Items
- Damage Memos
- Stock Count
- Transfer Orders
- Transfer Memos
- Visual Allocation
- Adjustment Memos
- Kits
- Quick Adjustment Dialog
- Promo Groups
- Purchase Orders
- Purchase Receipts
- ASN
- Matching Memos
- Order Management

Settings – Coupon Programs Restricted by PLU or Promo Group

Version 5.12 - TWD-4052

August 2017

We've added a restriction by item or by promo group to coupon programs and coupons. This is used for coupons that are only allowed to be used for certain items or promo groups.

Additionally, there are six new Custom Text fields in the Coupon Program area.

Go to Settings > Company Settings > Stored Values Services > Coupon Settings > New Coupon Program.

The *Restrictions* drop-down is where you can set up any restrictions on the coupon program. Available options in this field are *No Restrictions, Restrict by Promo Groups,* or *Restrict by Items.*

new coupon program	
general	
program name:	*
line discount: 🗸	
line discount reason:	~
global discount: 🗸	~
inactive:	
restrictions restrictions: no re	estrictions 👻
custom	
custom text 1:	
custom text 2:	
custom text 3:	
custom text 4:	
* - required	
	save cancel

When **Restrict by Promo Groups** is selected, this enables the *Restricted by Promo Groups* field where you'll need to select the promo groups to restrict.

global discount reason:	•	
inactive:		
restrictions		
restrictions:	restrict by promo groups 🔹	
restricted by promo groups:	any	edit j
* - required		
	571/0	cancel
	save	cancer

Clicking **Edit** brings up the following dialog for you to select Promo Groups.

elect prom	o groups				
 any prom 	ion groups eligible fo o group romo groups	r coupon p	orogram:		
select all	unselect all				
	promo group 🔺		selected		
0					
111					
123			\checkmark		
123123					
123ere321			\checkmark		
222					
2312			\checkmark		
23232323			\checkmark		
234234234					
342432					
68 records		e pa	age 1 of 7	10 2	25 50
				select	cancel

Any promo group selected is <u>excluded</u> from the coupon program.

CHQ RELEASE NOTES

Similarly, if **Restrict by Items** is selected, this enables the *Restricted by Items* field where you'll need to select the items to restrict.

Click **Edit** to bring up the *Select Items* dialog, as shown below.

activity by literat		
estrict by items	-	
23456, 232133	😣 * edit (Ð
sal	ve cancel	
	23456, 232133	23456, 232133 🛛 🗴 edit (save cancel

remove					Ç
all info	search to add 💋				
PLU 🔺	store description	description 1	DCSS name	attribute 1	attribute 2
	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II			WHITE	
122	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 //////////	Accessories - Ha	WHITE	ЗХL
123	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 //////////	Accessories - Ha	WHITE	L
124	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 //////////	Accessories - Ha	WHITE	M
125	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 //////////	Accessories - Ha	WHITE	XL
126	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 ///////////	Accessories - Ha	FOREST	2XL
127	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 //////////	Accessories - Ha	FOREST	ЗХL
128	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 ///////////	Accessories - Ha	FOREST	L
129	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 ////////////	Accessories - Ha	FOREST	M
130	S/S STRIPE POLO ///////II	R0007K01 ////////II	Accessories - Ha	FOREST	XL
35 records		🖌 🖌 page 🚺	of 4	10 25 50	

Any promo item selected is <u>excluded</u> from the coupon program.

At the bottom of the *New Coupon Program* dialog, the six new Custom fields display.

custom			
	custom text 1:		
	custom text 2:		
	custom text 3:		
	custom text 4:		
* - required			
		save	cancel

Verify Items from Held Customization

Version 5.12 - TWD-4729

August 2017

Under Settings > Sales > Sales field, we've added a new *Prompt to Print on Hold* checkbox. When selected, a prompt displays to print when a user is trying to put a Sales Receipt on hold.

100 - Clearwater	Store				
details	sales		taxes		
schedule	require customer for all sales: require customer for returns: pass held receipts to CTS:	\checkmark	use tax free integration: use service for tax calculation: ship item tax area:		*
general settings	clear all held receipts after (mins):	900	sales orders		
sales	prompt to print on hold:	_	default sell from location:	100 - Clearwater Store	Ŧ
payments	prevent negative discount:		default fill location:	100 - Clearwater Store	٣
sales receipt tabs	do not print store receipt when no credit card:				

Under Settings > Sales > Sales Documents, there is a new *Enable Lost Sale Creation* field. When enabled, when discarding items or receipts, a prompt displays to create a lost sale record and enter a *Lost Sale Reason*.

	inventory purchasing sales analytics services settings			
search D	sales documents			
▹ security	general			
 company settings 	rounding workflow: TaxDExtS			
 location settings 	show CLU instead of PLU in some items grids (temp):			
locations / location settings	require customer password for gift card not present:			
location price groups	external tax service URL: https://demo03int.teamworkinsight.com/REST/tax/gettax			
availability groups	sales			
franchise groups	restrict discount class to one type on sale (item or global):			
external locations	require customer information for tax exempt:			
location custom fields	allow to change tax area for sale items:			
inventory / catalog	allow multiple coupon discounts:			
+ customer	enable customer associated coupons:			
✓ sales	prompt for contact on add customer:			
POS settings	use customer override membership for discounting:			
sales documents	apply sold menoership benefits to current sale: enable lost sale creation:			
sales receipt tabs				
sales email	returns			
ship items	use custom returns service (disable universal returns):			
sales pre-set notes	use open returns custom panel:			
return reasons	payments			
Commission Group

Version 5.12 - TWD-5056

August 2017

This feature allows for defining details for a commission group, which is a simplified replacement for the Navision Commission Schedules functionality.

Defining Commission Groups is done in Settings > Sales > Commission Groups.

	inventory	purchasing sal	es analytics s	services set	tings	
> م	commission grou	ps				Q
 inventory / catalog 	new edit					
▶ customer	code 🔺	description				
✓ sales	ASSOC1	Associate Level 1				
POS settings	ASSOC2	Associate Level 2				
sales documents						
sales receipt tabs						
sales email						
ship items						
sales pre-set notes						
return reasons						
return conditions	2 records		4 4 page 1	of 1 🕨 🕅	10 25	50
payment methods	commission group Ass	ociate Level 1 details				
price / cost code	new edit	copy re	move			
price change reasons	promo group 🔺	commission type	start date	end date	m	nin amount ma
discount reasons	Test 07/19	sales %	08/08/2017	11/14/2017		\$200.00
tax exempt reasons	Tescontia	Sales 70	08/08/2017	11/14/2017		\$200.00
fees						
membership levels						
commission groups						
open return required fields						
 custom fields 						
▶ order management	<					>
 drawer management 	1 record		∢ √ page 1	of 1 🕨 🕅	10 25	50
root 🙍				Ŷ	English (US) 🔻	version 5.12.314.0

Void/Reverse Time Settings

Version 5.12 - TWD-4906

August 2017

This feature adds the capability to extend the void/reverse to function until the end of the business day, instead of timing out after 90 minutes. The void function for iAcepta has also been added.

New Settings

A new *Payment Processing – General* area is added to Location Settings > Payments.

details	payments				credit card - voic	e authorizatior	ı		
schedule	prompt to use available store c	redit:	\checkmark		phone:				
schedule	payment processing in test mode				message:				
custom	used for car	, ,	~						
general settings	use location based payment opt	ions:							
	restrict to one credit card per	sale:							
sales	warn when cash payment am		\$0.00		payment process	sing - paywork	S		
payments		eds:	\$0.00		merchant ID:				
sales receipt tabs	warning mess	age:			merchant key:				
sales order tabs					payment process	sing - eselect			
purchasing					store ID:				
	payment processing - cayan			-	API token:				
transfers	cayan key:	trade	showtest	(payment process				
SVS	cayan site ID:	trade	showtest		payment process	sing - general			
	cayan name:	trade	showtest		restrict vo	id/reverse by:	Time of day	•	
	force duplication:				numb	er of minutes:	90		
	use as shopper display:					time of day:	11:59 PM	Ŀ	
	require address on keyed auth:			C					
	timeout (sec):	30							

The *Restrict Void/Reverse By* drop-down is where you can set the length of time the void/reverse feature is restricted. The two options are:

- Time of Day: The time of day the void/revers is no longer permitted
- **Number of Minutes**: The number of minutes a user may void/reverse the document after finalizing.

Selecting **Number of Minutes** enables the *Number of Minutes* field.

Selecting **Time of Day** enables the *Time of Day* field.

Settings – Channels

Version 5.0 – TFS # 45607

August 2017

All settings for channels are moved from Silverlight to CHQ. These can be found under Settings > eCommerce > Channels.

TEAMWORK		invent	ory p	ourchasing	sales	analytics	services	settings	
search	۲	channels						search	
▹ security	^	new	edit	remove					
 company settings 		code 🔺	descript	tion			ecor	nm ready	
 location settings 		Shopify	Shopify	ECom Channel					
 inventory / catalog 		webstore						\checkmark	
▶ customer									
▶ sales									
 order management 									
 drawer management 									
▶ purchasing									
 transfers 									
▶ printing									
▶ reports	_								
✓ eCommerce									
channels									
Is scheduler									
 mobile dashboard 		2 reco	rds		H	🖣 page 1	of 1	10	25 50
root 🖷								🛞 English	(US) 👻 🗤

Other Enhancements

Javascript-Based Reports Replace Siverlight

Version 5.0 – TFS # 41011

August 2017

We've converted reporting in CHQ from Silverlight to Javascript. This is done in conjunction with our new interface for "favorite" reports.

Updated "About" Info

Version 5.0 – TFS # 49361

August 2017

We've updated the About info and copyright information in CHQ.

Additional UPC Verification

Version 5.0 – TFS # 48020

August 2017

We've extended the UPC validation to the following logic:

- If the UPC length is 18 or 15 characters and the UPC didn't pass the current validation, take the first 13 characters of the UPC and run validation again. If this 13-characters string passes the validation, then the original UPC is also correct.
- 2. If UPC length is 17 or 14 characters and the UPC didn't pass the current validation, take the first 12 characters of the UPC and run validation again. If this 12-characters string passes the validation, then the original UPC is also correct.

Customer Membership Code

Version 5.10 - TWD-2658

August 2017

Under Settings > Company Settings > Member ID, there's a new tab for creating Member IDs for customers.

		inventory	purchasing	sales	analytics	services	settings
search	Q	member ID					
▹ security	^		member ID	type: s	equential		
 company settings 			# of 0				
company information			sequential	start: 1	0000001		
 stored values services 			sequentia	end: 9	9999999		
general SVS settings							
member ID			last generate	ed ID: 1	0058471		

There is also a Member ID area in CRM.

CRM Teamwork D: Demo0	3 - Customers Values Import	Marketing Campaigns Settings
MENU	H Save C Refresh	
General Settings	General	
Devices	Settings Configuration Mode	CRM
Mailing Settings	Default Country	USA 👻
Transactional Emails		
Customer Settings	Phone Number	
LRP 1	Phone Number Format	No validation
LRP 2	Phone Number Default Country	Ţ
LRP 1 Promotions	Customer Search	
LRP 2 Promotions	include contact information in customer search	Yes
Gift Cards		
Store Credit	Member ID	
Coupons	member ID type	Sequential
	# of digits	# of digits
Marketing Settings	sequential start	10000001
Frequent Buyer		00000000
House Account	sequential end	99999999
Tokens	last generated ID	10058471

Updated List of Predefined Countries

Version 5.10 - TWD-2733

August 2017

We've updated the list of predefined countries with ISO codes (that display when filling in a field). For more information on the country codes, please contact your Teamwork representative.

Clean Up of Security Rights

Version 5.10 - TWD-2816

August 2017

We reviewed all security rights to remove those that are obsolete. Additionally we updated the Area, Application, Name, and Description on existing security rights.

All areas not currently used for security rights were removed.

Updated Date Picker to Match Time Picker

Version 5.10 - TWD-3224

August 2017

We've updated the Date Picker to be consistent with the Time Picker.

In CHQ update UI of date picker for it to be consistent with time picker.

•	April 2016 🔶 🕨									
Su	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	09:00			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	10:00			
8	9	10	11	12	13	14	11:00			
15	16	17	18	19	20	21				
22	23	24	25	26	27	28	AM			
29	30	31					PM			

The current date is displayed with a blue border. The selected date and time is displayed with a solid blue box, and the name of the weekday of the selected day shows in blue font.

New Length of Location Name Field

Version 5.11 - TWD-3408

August 2017

We've made changes to the length of the Location Name field in CHQ > Settings > Locations/Location Settings > New/Edit Location dialog. Now the maximum length is 128 characters.

If more than 128 characters are entered, an error message displays and you're unable to save.

CRM – Extended Email Status Information

Version 5.11 - CRM-88

August 2017

Customer information from SVS includes extended status information for the customer's email address. This information includes flags if the customer unsubscribed or marked the email as spam, if the email address is confirmed as invalid, etc.

CHQ saves this information so it is available for Reports.

Magento 1.9 - SL ECM Replaces EC API

Version 5.11-TWD-3748

August 2017

In Magento version 1.9, SL ECM replaces EC API.

Update Authorize.net SDK

Version 5.11 - TWD-3772

August 2017

We've updated Authorize.et SDK to the latest version.

FedEx Address Verification Service

Version 5.12 – TWD-4478

August 2017

This feature adds the capability to use FedEx service for address verification in POS.

Retailers must create a FedEx account to use the address verification service (AVS). After signing up with FedEx, the retailer receives credentials to enter into CHQ to enable the service.

When sending a request to FedEx for AVS, all the following fields are required to be populated:

Address 1 City State/Province Postal Code Country

Go to Settings > Customer > Customer Settings > Address Verification field to enable AVS and enter your credentials.

TEAMWORK CHQ		inventory	purchasing	sales	analytics	services	settings		
search	0	customer settings	5						
▹ security	^	general							
▶ company settings		def	ault customer prese	et option:	Standard Custom	ler		Ŧ	
 location settings 			default	country:	USA			*	
 inventory / catalog 		allow to add co	ntacts to customer	account:					
✓ customer		do not allow to chang	ge ship to state and	country:	\checkmark				
customer settings			customer histo	ry report:	FW-W-0023			Select	
ship to address types	1	customer password							
preset customer options		minimum	customer passwor	d length:	6				
customer required fields		ger	nerate temporary p	assword:					
contact required fields			temporary passwor	d length:	6				
universal customer search		address verification							1
device customer info	н				1				Г
titles	н		address verification		▼				L
▶ custom fields		customer	contact address ve		optional	* *			
▶ sales			ship to address ve address verification		required	-	~	AVS configuration	
▶ order management	1		auuress vernication	i service:	FEUEX		•	Avs conliguration	/

Customer/Contact Address Verification field indicates whether to use the AVS service when saving a customer, customer Ship To record, or contact record.

Ship to Address Verification indicates if the AVS service will be used when defining a Ship To address on a document.

Address Verification Service is where you can select the shipping service to use. At this time, only FedEx is available.

Click **AVS Configuration** to enter your FedEx credentials into CHQ.

All fields are required on this dialog.

AVS - FedEx		
account #:	510099999	*
meter #: URL:	118899999 https://wsbeta.fedex.com:443/web-services	*
password: key:	DzWsS6WMDBdV23miXy7FYQcY4 999999999999999999999999999999999999	*
* - required		
	save cancel	

Vendor Contact Emails added to Email PO

Version 5.12 - TWD-5489

August 2017

We've added Vendor Contact Emails to the Email PO function in the following areas:

- Purchasing > Purchase Orders > List view > Select a Released PO > Email PO
- Purchasing > Purchase Orders > Open a Released PO > Email PO

Additionally, the default for Send Email To box is now:

1. Email from vendor record/PO (as currently happens)

PLUS

2. All emails for all vendor contacts (POs from vendor) from the Email 1 and Email 2 fields on the Vendor Contact record.

Style Item Dialog for Min/Max

Version 5.12 - TWD-4905

August 2017

This feature adds the capability to set Min/Max values in the Style/Item dialog.

TE AMWORK ICHQ	inventory	purchasing sales	analytics servic	es settings			
search 🔎	styles & items de	signer					Ç.
security	new edit	remove	design move	up move down			
 company settings 	tab name	label	visible if style/model	visible if single item	visible if service item		
location settings	general style/model	general	\checkmark				
inventory / catalog	general single item	general		\checkmark			
styles & items designer	general service item	general			1		
preset item options	custom	custom	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
brands	items	items	\checkmark				
seasons	pricing	pricing		\checkmark	\checkmark		
 department classifications 	vendors	vendors	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
 alternate classifications 	min/max	min/max	\checkmark	\checkmark			
attributes	channels	channels				J	
price levels	categories	categories	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
model stock periods	custom 2	custom 2		\checkmark			
inventory settings	custom 3	common fields	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		
inventory labels	custom 4	custom 4			1		
inventory labels	custom 5	custom 5		\checkmark			

On a New or Edit Style/Model dialog, there is also a new Min/Max tab. This dialog is where you'll set the minimum and maximum values for the selected style or model.



Serial Number Management – Sales and Returns

Version 5.12 - TWD-4907

August 2017

We've made some updates to the way serial numbers are handled in POS and CHQ.

When a serial number is sold at POS and comes to CHQ

- The status of the serial number changes to Inactive
- This makes the serial number unusable

When a serial number is returned at POS and comes to CHQ

- The status of the serial number changes to Active
- This makes the serial number useable again

Additionally, if an item is put on hold the serial number is verified before the Sales Receipt can be finalized. If the serial number is invalid, an error message displays.

CRM – Identity GC

Version 5.10 - TWD-2652

August 2017

We've added a new type of gift card called Identity (current gift card types are Purchased or Non-Purchased).

This type of gift card has all the same features as the current gift cards and works the same as a Purchased-type card, with the exception that it cannot be re-assigned to another customer.

Identity-type cards can still be deactivated and it can have value added/removed through transactions.

Weeks of Supply Removed from DCSS Settings

Version 5.12 - TWD-5459

August 2017

Weeks of Supply is now removed from DCSS settings in the following areas:

- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Department Classifications
- Settings > Inventory/Catalog > Department Classifications > New Or Edit

Rename Min/Max to Model Stock

Version 5.12 - TWD-5458

August 2017

Min/Max fields have been renamed to Model Stock.

NOTE

This feature is related to Min/Max Import feature above.

Model Stock is an advanced engine for managing stock levels for all similar locations, for any season. Using the principles of minimum and maximum inventory, this engine can auto-replenish stores using any desired replenishment cycle.

Sell-through volume can be segregated into five levels: very low, low, medium, high and very high, for improved focus and management. This feature, coupled with Visual Allocation, provides a comprehensive merchandising tool to optimize stock levels for maximum sell-through.

TEAMMORKICHQ	inventory purchasing sales	analytics services settings
styles & items		search Q
damage memos	new list imports import model sto	
stock count	recent	filter
transfer orders	5 Summer shirts Jared's Market	style #
transfer memos	Massage 21 Drops	
visual allocation	530 DBEST/#202 *123Estheticplus	
adjustment memos	223 Classic Polo Shirt ACME Textiles	dess 🔻
price memos	11095 gikg Aldo	department 👻
kits	11070 Cone	department code 🔹

Changes can be seen in the following areas:

- Rename *Min/Max* tab to *Model Stock* in Styles & Items designer, and change default label of the tab to *Model Stock*
- Change caption *Min/Max Values* to *Model Stock Values* in Style/Model and Single Item dialog, *Model Stock* tab.
- Change confirmation message for Copy button in Style/Model dialog, *Model Stock* tab. Title: Copy Model Stock Values. Message: Do you want to copy model stock values to all items in the style?

CHQ RELEASE NOTES

- Change name of Min/Max Imports Access right to Model Stock Imports Access
- Change name of *Min/Max Imports Add/Edit* right to *Model Stock Imports Add/Edit*
- Change label of *Import Min/Max* button to *Import Model Stock* in Styles & Items interaction view.
- Change label for Min/Max Imports list view to Model Stock Imports
- Change label for New Min/Max Import dialog (request form) to New Model Stock Import
- Change label for *Min/Max Import* details dialog to *Model Stock Import* #<import #> <status>.
- Change confirmation message for Import button in Min/Max Import Details dialog. Title: Model Stock Import. Message: Do you want to import model stock values?

Price Export API

Version 5.12 - TWD-5572

August 2017

There's a new Price Export API that returns a price ledger with the following fields:

- ItemID
- Price Level
- Price
- Start Date
- End Date

Order History API

Version 5.12 - TWD-5555

August 2017

We've made changes for Teamwork services to work with Order History Echo Service.

Send All Sales Receipts to Avalara

Version 5.12 - TWD-4904

August 2017

To provide monthly tax reporting so that retailers don't have to do complex tax forms for each state where a sale was made, ALL sales receipts for a period are sent to Avalara by CHQ.

This includes receipts that used Avalara and receipts where the tax was calculated by Teamwork Tax Settings.

With all Sales Receipts for a given month, Avalara can create the monthly sales tax report form for each state.

Avalara then tells the retailer exactly how much is owed to each state for that month, and accuracy is guaranteed because Avalara actually recalculates the sales tax for the Sales Receipts made with Teamwork Tax Settings as well.

Sales tax reporting is monthly so all the receipts needs to be on the Avalara server by end of month or very soon after.

Sales receipts can be posted in two ways from CHQ, to recalculate or not recalculate when posted to Avalara service.

Issue Gift Card	
Number	Gift Card unique number
PIN	PIN code
Balance	Initial balance
Card Type	Purchased
GC Balance Transfer	Purchased
GC Balance Recharge	Non-purchased Identity
GC Multiple Payments	ALLOWED
Reason Code	Purchased
Expiration Policy	Period
Expiration Period (days)	9999
	OK Cancel

This new gift card type also displays under the *Reason Code*.

Card Type	Purchased
GC Balance Transfer	Purchased
GC Balance Recharge	Non-purchased Identity
GC Multiple Payments	ALLOWED
Reason Code	Purchased
Expiration Policy	Period

If the gift card type is Identity, the Reassign button is disabled (Identity-type cards are unable to be reassigned).

IENU	+ Ne v 📄 Reassign	C Tra	nsactions 🛛 👤 Cust	omer Deactivate							Card # or Custome	r ID 👷	C Ref
ift Cards	Gift card #	Balance	Customer	Location Name	Last Transaction	Status	Туре	No Transfer	No Recharge	Use Once	Expiration	PIN	Reason Co
oupons	1234	100.00			May 31, 2016 12:45 pm (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO		NO	Purchased
rograms	12345678	0.00	Jeffrey Stegall		Sep 13, 2016 10:47 am (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO		10	Purchased
	12345678901234567					Acti e	Identity					110	
	230889	100.00	Tatyana Ignatieva		Mar 21, 2016 12:09 pm (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO	-	Ne	Purchased
	63296785514	65.03			Feb-22, 2018-02:55-pm (UTC)	Expired	Non-purchased	YES	YES	¥ES	Dec 10, 2016 11:59 pm	NO	Events
	9876	100.00			Aug 30, 2016 04:06 pm (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO		NO	Purchased
	98765432109876	4.65	Jeffrey Stegall		Nov 16, 2016 06:48 pm (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO	-	NO	Purchased
	999	0.00	Jeffrey Stegall		Sep 16, 2016 01:47 pm (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO	-	NO	Purchased
	A040786A8D75B150	125.00			Feb 22, 2016 02:55 pm (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO	-	NO	Purchased
	A1WKWPTG3NLX	50.00			Mar 23, 2016 03:06 pm (UTC)	Active	Purchased	NO	NO	NO	-	NO	Purchased

Customer Orders	Items Sh	ip To Pre-Sets	Returns Sun	nmary Accounts	Payments		
Summary Loyalty Rewa	rds Frequent Bu	iyer Tokens	Gift Cards	Deposits Store	Credit Coupon:	s House Acco	
Card #	Registered	Reason	Current Balance▼	Add Value	New Balance	Sell New Card	
98765432109876	Yes	Purchased	\$4.65	\$0.00	\$4.65		
1234567890123456	Yes	Promotion	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00		
12345678	Yes	Identity	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Add Value	
999	Yes	Customer Serv	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00		
						Remove Value	
						Card History	
					Card(s): 4	Link Gift Card	
	\$4.65						
			\$0.00	Check Gift Card Balance			
	\$0.00	Curd Bulance					
			Ne	w Total Balance:	\$4.65		

In POS, under Accounts > Gift Cards, there's a new *Reason* column.

For all Identity-type cards, the *Link Gift Card* button is disabled.



Epilogue

This manual was published on 11 October 2017 by Teamwork Retail.

CHQ is accessed via the app store, Meraki, or otherwise provided by a Teamwork representative. This manual provides documentation on new features and product updates to the existing CHQ software.

If you have any questions or wish to receive training from Teamwork Retail, email us at: <u>training@teamworkretail.com</u>.

If you need technical support, have a question about whether or not you have the current version of the manual, or you have some comments or feedback about our manual, please contact us at: support@teamworkretail.com.

For emergency support call the Teamwork Main Line (727) 210-1700 and select 1 to leave a message that will immediately be dispatched to an on-call tech.